Clearwater

Underground Water Conservation District ‘

WAAANS
Every drop counts!

Board Meeting

&
Workshop

Clearwater Underground Water Conservation District
640 Kennedy Court
Belton, Texas

Wednesday
August 27, 2025
1:30 p.m.




Clearwater Underground Water Conservation District

Board Members

Jody Williams, Director Pct. 3
President

15098 FM 437 South

P.O. Box 780

Rogers, TX 76569

Cell Phone: 254-493-4705
E-mail: jwilliams@cuwcd.org

Leland Gersbach, Director Pct. 1
Vice-President

7872 Hackberry

Holland, TX 76534

Phone: 254-657-2679
E-mail: Igersbach@cuwcd.org

Gary Young, Director Pct. 2
Secretary
1314 Creek View
Salado, TX 76571
Cell Phone: 972-571-3118
E-mail: gyoung@cuwcd.org

Scott Brooks, Director Pct. 4

425 Mercy Ranch Rd.
Florence, TX 76527

Phone: 254-226-4000
E-mail: sbrooks@cuwcd.org

Jim Brown, Director At-Large

1350 Mission Trail

Salado, TX 76571

Phone: 832-928-3348
E-mail: jbrown@cuwcd.org

Revised February 5, 2025







Notice

NOTICE OF THE MEETING OF THE
CLEARWATER UNDERGROUND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
August 27, 2025

is hereby given that the above-named Board will hold a Board meeting on Wednesday,

August 27, 2025 beginning at 1:30 p.m., in the Clearwater UWCD Board Room located at 640 Kennedy Court, Belton, Texas.
The following items of business will be discussed'.

Board Meeting:

1. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.
2. Public comment.?
3. Approve minutes of the August 13, 2025, Board meeting.
4. Hold Public Hearing on the proposed changes to District Rules.
5. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if necessary, to adopt changes to the District Rule, by resolution.
6. Hold Public Hearing on the proposed changes to the Administrative Fee Schedule.
7. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if necessary, to adopt changes to the Administrative Fee schedule, by
resolution.
8. Hold Public Hearing on the proposed tax rate for tax year 2025,
9. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if necessary, to adopt the District Budget for FY2026.
10. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if necessary, to adopt the District tax rate for tax year 2025, by resolution.
11. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if necessary, to approve surety bond for CTWA representative.
12. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if necessary, to approve the FY2S line-item budget amendments as
requested.
13. General Manager’s Report concerning office management and staffing related to District Management Plan>.
14. Director comments and reports®.
15. Discuss agenda items for the next meeting. 1 . A
16. Set time and place for the next meeting. - o =M
17. Adjoum. Ffﬁf‘ = 5
:: {::‘ o D
@M e~ 4
=03
27 Z 3
Dated the 15* day of August 2025, Jody Williams, Board Pres;dgﬁt _,_— g
S

By, @JJ( ﬁaw\‘

Dirk Aaron, Asst. Secretary

Agenda items may be considered, deliberated and/or acted upon in a different order than set forth above.
CUWCD is commilted to ¢ li with the Amedcans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Reasonable accommodation and cqual opportunity for effective

communications will be provided upon request. Please contact CUWCD’s office at 254-933-0120 at least 24 hours in advance if accomumodation is needed.

' During the meeting, the Board reserves the right to go into executive session for any of the puposes authorized under Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code,
for any item on the above agenda or as othenvise authorized by law.

?Please limit comments to 3 minutes. The Board is nol allowed to take action on any subject presented that is not on the agenda, nor is the Board required to provide
a response; any sul we consideration and action by the Board will be conducted under a specific item on a future agenda.

*No formal action will be taken by the Board on these agenda items. These items are on the agenda to provide CUWCD"s stafY. Stakeholder Committees, and Directors
with an opportunity to bring 1o the public's and cach other's sttention impostant activities and issues pertinent to the management of gronndwater within the District.
including, but not fimited to. cuirent events in the District involving groundwater, wells. or CUWCD pennittees, state or regional developments related to water
management. and aclivities of the siatY, and Directors. Substantive deliberation and tormal action on any of these issues will be conducted pursuant 1o a specific item

on a future agenda.







Clearwater Underground Water Conservation District Meeting
640 Kennedy Court
Belton, TX
Wednesday, August 13, 2025
Minutes

The Clearwater Underground Water Conservation District (CUWCD) held a Workshop and Board meeting at 1:30
p.m. on Wednesday, August 13, 2025, in the Clearwater UWCD Board Room located at 640 Kennedy Court, Belton,
Texas.

Board Members Present: Absent: Staff:

Jody Williams, President, Pct 3 Dirk Aaron, General Manager

Leland Gersbach, Vice Pres, Pct 1 Whitney Ingram, Asst. General Manager
Gary Young, Secretary, Pct 2 Shelly Chapman, Admin. Manager

Scott Brooks, Director, Pct 4
Jim Brown, Director, At-Large

Guests:
Mike Keester - KT Groundwater Neil Deeds — Intera Sandra Blankenship — WCID#1
Chuck Brashear Peter DiLillo Steve Dowell — Morgan’s Point Resort

Cole Ruiz — Lloyd Gosselink (online)

Workshop convened with President, Jody Williams, at 1:30 p.m.

Workshop Item #1: Receive information related to the 89" Legislative Session and Groundwater Legislation.
Dirk Aaron briefed the Board on Groundwater Legislation related to this Legislative session. He highlighted HB2135,
HB216, HB217, and HB218. Cole Ruiz also gave some insight on these bills.

Workshop Item #2: Receive information related to the FY26 Tax Rate and District Budget.

Whitney presented items of interest related to the FY26 Tax Rate and District budget. She presented study and data
enhancement proposals. She presented additional considerations to the proposed FY26 budget to include an additional
increase in salary for Tristin Smith.

Whitney asked the Board to review the draft budget worksheet and consider funding recommendations as presented.

The Boad discussed proposed budget and conveyed their thoughts related to a proposed tax rate.

Workshop Item #3: Receive proposed redline changes to the District Rules.

Whitney presented redline changes to the District Rules. The proposed revisions and amendments incorporate changes
made to Chapter 36 of the Texas Water Code by the 89" Texas Legislature. Cole answered questions related to the
changes.

Workshop Item #4: Receive proposed redline changes to the Administrative Fee Schedule.

In January 2025, the Board discussed establishing an annual review and associated hearing of the Administrative Fee
Schedule to take place before the adoption of the district budget. Whitney presented background related to the changes.
She presented the proposed changes and noted that all changes will be adopted, by resolution, at the August 27%
meeting and will take effect immediately. In January of 2026, the staff will invoice for transport fees incurred during
calendar year 2025 according to the new rate adopted in the Administrative Fee schedule.

Workshop Item #5: Discuss plans for the 2025 Bell County Water Symposium.
Whitney noted that the date for the 2025 Bell County Water Symposium has been set for November 19" at the
Candence Bank Center. She is currently working on discussion topics and speakers.

Workshop Item #6: Receive updates related to GMA8 DFC determination, per TWC section 36. 108, and plans for
the next round.

Neil Deeds (Intera) gave an update on the draft model. He noted that all changes have been completed, and they should
have results of the run in the next couple of weeks.




Whitney inquired about the appointment of representatives to GMA 8 once Dirk retires. Dirk commented that Whitney
will step into his place, and the Board can appoint an alternate. Jody stated that Gary is currently the alternate and
asked if he would like to continue serving in that capacity for GMA 8. Gary confirmed that he would still like to
continue as alternate for GMA 8. Whitney will draft a letter for GMA 8 stating that she will be replacing Dirk at GMA
8 and Gary will continue to serve as her alternate.

Workshop closed with President, Jody Williams, at 3:47 p.m.

1. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.
President Jody Williams lead the invocation.
Secretary, Gary Young, led the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Public Comment.
No public comments.

3. Approve minutes of July 9, 2025, Board meeting and workshop.
Board members received the minutes of July 9, 2025, Board meeting and workshop in their Board packet to
review prior to the meeting.

Vice President, Leland Gersbach, moved to approve the minutes of July 9, 2025, Board meeting and Workshop
as presented. Director, Scott Brooks, seconded the motion.

Motion carried 5-0.

4. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if necessary, to accept the monthly Financial Report for July
2025 (FY25) as presented.
Board members received the monthly financial report for July 2025 in their Board packet to review prior to
the meeting.

Director, Jim Brown, moved to accept the July 2025 financial report as presented. Secretary, Gary Young,
seconded the motion.

Motion carried 5-0.

5. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if necessary, to accept the monthly Investment Fund account
report for July 2025 (FY25) as presented.
Board members received the monthly investment Fund account report for July 2025 in their Board packet to
be reviewed prior to the meeting.

Secretary, Gary Young, moved to accept the monthly Investment Fund account report for July 2025 as
presented. Director, Scott Brooks, seconded the motion.

Motion carried 5-0.

6. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if necessary, to approve the FY25 line-item budget amendments
as requested.

Shelly presented the line-item budget amendment request as follows:
1. Baylor University — line-item 53110.4 Spring Shed (Baylor Study — AJ):
At the Board meeting in July, the Board directed staff to make the final payment for the sponsored study in
the FY2S5 fiscal year instead of carrying it over to FY26. Shelly is requesting a line-item budget amendment
of $20,000 of $17,355 to be moved from 53120.1-Coalition (RHCP) and the remaining balance of
$2,645 from 53130.5-Geo Logging.

2. North Texas GCD - line-item 50615 GAM Development (GMA 8):
Shelly is requesting a line-item budget amendment of $3,416.24 to be moved from 50250-Contingency to
cover additional expenses for GMA 8.

3. Lloyd Gosselink — line-item 53703 Legal-General Rules/Accountability:
Shelly is requesting a line-item budget amendment of $941.50 to be moved from 53702-Legal/Endangered
Species to cover additional legal expenses related to rule changes.




Available | Amount

Line Item Invoice S Funds |Requested From Available Funds | Remaining Funds
Bavlor Univ{53110.4-Pring Shed(BAYLOR  $20,000.00 $0.00 | $17,355.00 }]53120.1-Coalition RHCP) $17355.00 $0.00
$2,645.00 |]53130.5-Geo Logging $3,000.00 $355.00
$20,000.00
50615-GAM Development $3417.13 $0.89 $3,416.24 | |50250-Contingency $7277.00 $3,860.76
Llovd Goss [53703-LegalRules'Accountabj  $1,943.00 | $1,001.50 | $941.50 ||53702-Endangerd Species $2,500.00 $1,558.50

Director, Scott Brooks, moved to approve the line-item budget amendments as requested. Secretary, Gary
Young, seconded the motion.

Motion carried 5-0.

7. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if necessary, to set the preliminary tax rate for tax year 2025
on the proposed budget for FY26.

The preliminary tax rate was discussed at length during workshop item #2. Based on that discussion, Scott
commented that he would support keeping the tax rate at .002230 but would prefer to set it at the “no new
revenue” rate of .002130. Leland concurred with Scott.

Director, Jim Brown, moved to set the preliminary tax rate at .002230 for tax year 2025 on proposed budget
for FY2026. Secretary, Gary Young, seconded the motion.

Motion carried 5-0.

8. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if necessary, to set the public hearing date and adoption of the
FY26 budget.

Based on posting and notice deadlines for public hearings, it was recommended that the Board set the date for
the public hearing to adopt the FY2026 budget for Wednesday, August 27,

Director, Scott Brooks, moved to set the public hearing for adoption of the FY2026 budget for Wednesday,
August 27*. Director, Jim Brown, seconded the motion.

Motion carried 5-0.

9. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if necessary, to set the public hearing date and adoption of the
tax rate for tax year 2025.

Based on posting and notice deadlines for public hearings, it was recommended that the Board set the date for
the public hearing to adopt the tax rate for tax year 2025 on Wednesday, August 27",

Secretary, Gary Young, moved to set the public hearing to adopt the tax rate for tax year 2025 for Wednesday,
August 27, Director, Jim Brown, seconded the motion.

Motion carried 5-0.

10. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action if necessary to adopt, by resolution, the appointment of Dirk
Aaron as founding member representative to the Central Texas Water Alliance.

With the creation of the CTWA by the 89™ Legislature, Clearwater UWCD has the authority to appoint a
representative to serve as one of the Alliance’s founding members. The Board has already appointed and
approved Dirk Aaron to serve in this role.

Secretary, Gary Young, moved to adopt, by resolution, the appointment of Dirk Aaron as a representative to
the CTWA. Director, Scott Brooks, seconded the motion.

Motion carried 5-0.




11. General Manager’s report concerning office management and staffing related to District Management Plan.
Whitney Ingram presented the General Manager's report.

» Management plan has been submitted to TWCD for approval. It has not been reviewed yet. TWDB
could not say when the review would be completed.

« Dirilling permit updates: City of Temple still in process; Mustang Spring was issued their PWS # and
the CCN released from Georgetown.

« Future drilling permits on the horizon are: Salado Airport, Morgan’s Point Resort (one of two wells),
and WCID #2.

12. Review monthly report and possible consideration and Board action on the following:
a) Drought Status Reports
b) Education Outreach Update
¢) Monitoring Wells
d) Rainfall Reports
e) Well Registration Update
f) Aquifer Status Report & Non-exempt Monthly Well Production Reports

Copies of the Monthly Staff Reports were given to the Board Members to review. No action is required.
Information items only. Whitney gave a brief overview of items listed.

13. Director’s comments and reports.
e Gary Young: None
e Scott Brooks: None
e James Brown: Toured the lettuce plant with Whitney and the Water Ambassadors. He was impressed
with their operation and thoroughly enjoyed the tour.
e Jody Williams: Jody thanked the staff for all their hard work.
¢ Leland Gersbach: None

14. Discuss agenda items for the next meeting.
e Update from Mike Keester
o Update on Groundwater Management Plan
o Public Hearing to adopt FY26 and set tax rate for tax year 2025
e Reception for Dirk 11:00-1:00

15. Set the time and place of the next meeting.
Wednesday, August 27, 2025, 1:30 — CUWCD Board Room — 640 Kennedy Court, Belton

16. Adjourn.

Board meeting adjourned with President, Jody Williams, at 4:40 p.m.

Jody Williams, President or
Leland Gersbach, Vice President

ATTEST:

Gary Young, Secretary or
Dirk Aaron, Assistant Secretary






Clearwater Underground

Water Conservation District STAFF REPORT

Board Meeting Agenda Items #4 & 5
August 27, 2025 Proposed District Rule Changes

Agenda Items:

4. Hold Public Hearing on the proposed changes to District Rules.
5. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if necessary, to adopt changes to the District
Rule, by resolution.

Narrative:

The proposed revisions and amendments to the District Rules incorporate changes made to Chapter
36, Texas Water Code, by the 89th Texas Legislature and include changes to Rule 13.2 regarding
export of groundwater out of the District. A 20-day notice for a public hearing on the proposed
amendments to Rules 3, 12, and 13 was posted with the county clerk on August 7, 2025 at 8:47
AM, printed in Temple Daily Telegram and Killeen Daily Herald, and posted on the District website
with a red-line copy of the proposed changes.

The Board will hold a public hearing to receive comments on the potential rule changes. Following
the close of the public hearing, the Board will discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if
necessary, to adopt amendments to the District rules.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED REVISIONS WITH EXPLANATIONS

Rule Proposed Revision Explanation

Section 3 Adds the following language to Section 3. HB 2078
District
Management | ...in accordance with Section 36.1071, Texas Water Code.
Plan

Adds the following language to Section 3. SB 1583

...and the amount of Modeled Available Groundwater corresponding to the
most recently approved Desired Future Conditions.

Rule 12.3 Amends Rule 12.3.3 subsection (a) as follows:
Rule
Enforcements | $10:600-:00 $25,000.00

Adds the following language to 12.3.3 subsection (a):

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may recover a civil penalty in
excess of the maximum penalty allowed by this Rule if the Board determines,
and a court concurs, that the person gained an economic benefit greater than
the maximum penalty as a result of the violation.




Amends Rule 12.3.3 subsection (b) (1-5) as follows:

1) the nature, circumstances, extent, duration, and gravity of the
violation, with special emphasis on the effect of the violation: one:

Groundwater resources;

Another person’s right to produce groundwater;

Public health and safety; or

Other water resources or the environment;

With respect to the alleged violator:
' The history and extent of previous violations (i.e. compliance
history);
b. The degree of culpability, including whether the violation was
attributable to mechanical or electrical failures and whether the violation
could have been reasonably anticipated and avoided;
C. The demonstrated good faith, including actions taken by the alleged
violator to rectify the cause of the violation and to compensate the affected

person;

d. Whether there was an economic benefit gained as a result of the
violation and, if so, the amount of the economic benefit;

€. The amount necessary to deter future violations; and

f. If the alleged violator is a person required to adopt a drought
contingency plan under Texas Water Code § 11.1272 and overproduction of
groundwater is the basis of the alleged violation, whether the person acted in
good faith and exercised reasonable diligence in implementing and enforcing
the terms and the plan;

(3) any enforcement costs related to the violation, including but not limited to
the District’s legal fees and other consultant fees, if any;

and

(4) any other matters deemed necessary by the Board.

Rule 13.2 Amends Rule 13.2.1 subsection (b) as follows: Subsection
Groundwater (b) reflects
Export Fee 20-0-cents-er-$0:20 20.6 cents or $0.206 allowed
increase in
export fees
pursuant to
HB 3059
Adds subsection (d) to Rule 13.2.3 as follows: Provides
clarity on
d) If the District enters into an interlocal contract with another use of
groundwater conservation district under Chapter 791, Government Code, transported
maintaining operability of wells located in that district that are significantly fees
affected by groundwater development, so long as the interlocal agreement
with the other district authorizes funds to be used for that purpose.




Adds Rule 13.2.5 as follows: Provides
transport
13.2.5 A permit holder who transports groundwater for use outside of the holder
District shall either: options in
reporting vs
a) Install and maintain a meter that accurately measures the volume of take or pay
groundwater transported out of the District. The Meter shall be read each invoicing
month, and the volume of groundwater exported must be reported to the
District using a form or electronic reporting system approved by the District.
The Meter must comply with all applicable requirements of Rule 5.5,
including requirements related to installation, reporting, accuracy, and testing.
The permit holder must maintain accurate records of the volume exported and
the purpose of the export, and such records must be made available for
inspection by the District or its representatives.

Or

b) Elect not to install a meter and instead pay the export fee prescribed
in Rule 13.2.1 on the total amount of groundwater authorized under the
applicable permit, regardless of the total actual volume of groundwater
exported out of the District.

Adds Rule 13.2.6 as follows:

13.2.6 A permit holder who transports groundwater outside of the District
and does not install a meter to measure the volume of groundwater exported
out of the District shall be invoiced an export fee based on the full annual
volume of groundwater their permit authorizes for export outside of the
District.

Notes:

The following bills, passed by the 89th Legislature, amend Chapter 36, and are incorporated into the Rules under
these revisions.

e HB 2078 — Relating to the joint planning of desired future conditions in groundwater management areas.
¢ SB 1583 - Relating to management plans adopted by GCD.
e HB 5560 - Relating to penalties in certain suits involving a GCD.




District Rule 13.2 Groundwater Export Fee:

Per TWC Sec. 36.122 and District Rule 13.2, the District is proposing an export fee increase to $0.206 per
thousand gallons of water exported from the District.

See the figure below listing the six transporting entities in the District. The table includes the difference
between the collected transport fees in FY24 in comparison to potential scenarios — the potential fees
incurred with the proposed transport rate if metered and the same production occurred, and the potential
fees incurred with the proposed transport rate if the entity is charged for the full allowable export permit.

2024 Transport Fees - Actual East Bell Little Eim Bell-Milam 0&B JSWSC CTWSC Total
Total Transport Permit 1,010,138 900,913 35,660,000 606,977 47,639,478 239,500,802
Total Water Transported (conjunctive) 3,472,080 2,142,925 129,265,208 2,249,120 3,886,000 282,739,999
% Groundwater (x) 10.03% 29.00% 16.00% 2.30% 100.00% 5.00%
Total Groundwater Transported 348,250 621,448 20,269,882 51,730 3,886,000 14,137,000

(+) 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000

348.25 621.45 20,269.88 51.73 3,886.00 14,137.00

District Fee (x) 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025

Transport Fee $8.71 $15.54 $506.75 $1.29 $97.15 $353.42 | $982.86|

POTENTIAL Fees - Metered East Bell Little Elm Bell-Milam 0O&B JSWSC CTWSC
Total Transport Permit 1,010,138 900,913 35,660,000 606,977 47,639,478 239,500,802
Total Water Transported (conjunctive) 3,472,080 2,142,925 129,265,208 2,249,120 3,886,000 282,739,999
% Groundwater (x) 10.03% 29.00% 16.00% 2.30% 100.00% 5.00%
Total Groundwater Transported 348,250 621,448 20,269,882 51,730 3,886,000 14,137,000
(+) 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000
348.25 621.45 20,269.88 51.73 3,886.00 14,137.00
District Fee (x) 0.206 0.206 0.206 0.206 0.206 0.206

Transport Fee $71.74 $128.02 $4,175.60 $10.66 $800.52 $2,912.22 $8,098.75|
R pSu dealBNN B, |

POTENTIAL Fees - Allowable Transport  East Bell Little Elm Bell-Milam 0&B JISWSC CTWSC Total
Total Transport Permit 1,010,138 900,913 35,660,000 606,977 47,639,478 239,500,802
Total Water Transported (conjunctive) 1,010,138 900,913 35,660,000 606,977 47,639,478 239,500,802
% Groundwater (x) 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Total Groundwater Transported 1,010,138 900,913 35,660,000 606,977 47,639,478 239,500,802

(=) 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000

1,010.14 900.91 35,660.00 606.98 47,639.48 239,500.80

District Fee (x) 0.206 0.206 0.206 0.206 0.206 0.206

Transport Fee $208.09 $185.59 $7,345.96 $125.04 $9,813.73 $49,337.17 |$67,015.57|




See the reference to TWC statute and current District Rules below.

TWC Sec. 36.122. TRANSFER OF GROUNDWATER OUT OF DISTRICT.

(e)
(D
(2)
3)
(e-1)

(e-2)

(e-3)

Except as provided by Subsection (e-1), the district may impose an export fee or surcharge
using one of the following methods:
a fee negotiated between the district and the exporter;
for a tax-based district, a rate not to exceed 20 cents for each thousand gallons of water
exported from the district; or
for a fee-based district, a rate not to exceed the greater of 20 cents for each thousand gallons
or a 50 percent surcharge, in addition to the district's production fee, for water exported from
the district.
Effective January 1, 2024, the maximum allowable rate a district may impose for an export
fee or surcharge under Subsection (e)(2) or (e)(3) increases by three percent each calendar
year.
A district governed by a special law in regard to an export fee or surcharge on water exported
from the district may charge an export fee or surcharge in accordance with that special law
or in accordance with Subsections (e) and (e-1).
An export fee or surcharge imposed under Subsection (e) or an increase in an imposed
export fee or surcharge is not valid unless it is approved by the board after a public hearing.

CUWCD RULE 13.2 GROUNDWATER EXPORT FEE
13.2.1 The District may impose a reasonable fee or surcharge, established by Board resolution, for

export of groundwater out of the District using one of the following methods: a) a fee
negotiated between the District and the exporter; or b) a rate not to exceed 20 cents for each
thousand gallons of water exported out of the District.

13.2.2. Effective January 1, 2024, the maximum allowable rate the District may impose for an
export fee or surcharge under this Rule shall increase each calendar year in accordance with Section
36.122(e-1), Texas Water Code. An export fee or surcharge imposed, or an increase in an import
export fee or surcharge, is not valid unless it is approved by the Board after a public hearing.

GM Recommendations:

v Adopt amendments to District rules, by resolution.







ater
ey © Clearwater Underground Water
Every drop counis!

Conservation District

DRAFT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO

District
Rules

Proposed amendments to existing District Rules 3.0, 12.3, and 13.2
(reflected in red-line/strike-out)

PO. Box 1989, Belton, TX 76513 254.933.0120 cuwcd.org




SECTION 3 DISTRICT MANAGEMENT PLAN

The Board shall adopt a Management Plan that specifies the acts, procedures, performance and
avoidance necessary to prevent Waste, the reduction of artesian pressure, or the draw-down of the
water table_in accordance with Section 36.1071. Texas Water Code. The District shall use the
Rules of the District to implement the Management Plan. The Board will review the plan at least
every fifth year. Upon adoption of Desired Future Condition(s) under Section 36.108 of the Texas
Water Code, the District shall update its Management Plan within two years of the date of the
adoption of the Desired Future Condition(s). The District shall thereafter update its Rules to
implement the Management Plan within one year of the date the Management Plan is updated to
include the adopted Desired Future Condition(s)_and the amount of Modeled Available

considers a new plan necessary or desirable, based on evidence presented at hearing, a new plan
will be adopted. A plan, once adopted, remains in effect until amended, or until the adoption of a
new plan.

RULE 12.3 RULE ENFORCEMENT

12.3.3 Remedies

(a) The Board shall consider the appropriate remedies to pursue against an alleged
violator during the show cause hearing, including assessment of a civil penalty,
injunctive relief, or assessment of a civil penalty and injunctive relief. In assessing
civil penalties, the Board may determine that each day that a violation continues
shall be considered a separate violation. The civil penalty for a violation of any
District Rule is hereby set at the lower of $25,000.00 per violation or a lesser
amount determined after consideration, during the enforcement hearing, of the
criteria in subsection (b) of this Rule. Notwithstanding the foregoing. the Board
may recover a civil penalty in excess of the maximum penalty allowed by this Rule
if the Board determines. and a court concurs, that the person gained an economic
benefit greater than the maximum penalty as a result of the violation.

(b) In determining the amount of a civil penalty, the Board of Directors shall consider
the following factors:

(1) the nature, circumstances. extent. duration. and gravity of the violation
with special emphasis on the effect of the violation: one;,
a.__Groundwater resources;
b. Another person’s right to produce groundwater:
¢._Public health and safetv: or
d. _Other water resources or the environment;
(2) With respect to the alleged violator:
a. The history and extent of previous violations (i.e. compliance
history):
b. The degree of culpability, including whether the violation was
attributable to mechanical or electrical failures and whether the
violation could have been reasonably anticipated and avoided:

[ Deleted: 10 ) . . i

| Deleted: (1) compliance history
{ Deleted: ;

Deleted: (2) efforts to correct the violation and
whether the violator makes a good faith effort to
cooperate with the District;




¢. The demonstrated good faith. including actions taken bv the
alleged violator to rectify the cause of the violation and to
compensate the affected person:

d. Whether there was an economic benefit gained as a result of the
violation and. if so. the amount of the economic benefit;
The amount necessary to deter future violations; and

f. If the alleged violator is a person required to adopt a drought
contingency plan _under Texas Water Code § 11.1272 and
overproduction of groundwater is the basis of the alleged
violation. whether the person acted in good faith and exercised
reasonable diligence in implementing and enforcing the terms

and the plan:
{3) any enforcement costs related to the violation, including but not limited Deleted: (3) the penalty amount necessary to ensun
to the District’s legal fees and other consultant fees. if any; future compliance and deter future noncompliance;§
and f Deleted: 4
(4) any other matters deemed necessary by the Board. ( Deleted: 5

RULE 13.2 GROUNDWATER EXPORT FEE

13.2.1 The District may impose a reasonable fee or surcharge, established by Board resolution,
for export of groundwater out of the District using one of the following methods:

a) a fee negotiated between the District and the exporter; or
b) _ a rate not to exceed 20.6 cents_or $0.206 for each thousand gallons of water
exported out of the District.

13.2.3 The District may only use funds obtained from the rate increase under Rule 13.2.2 for costs
related to assessing and addressing impacts associated with groundwater development as
provided by Texas Water Code Section 36.207, including:

a) Maintaining operability of wells significantly affected by groundwater
development;
b) Developing or distributing alternative water supplies;, [ _ Deleted: and
¢) Conducting aquifer monitoring, data collection, and aquifer science; and [ Deleted:
d) If the District enters into an interlocal contract with another groundwater T a0 ; ST
conservation _district _under Chapter 791,  Government Code. maintaining
operability_of wells located in that district that are significantly affected by
groundwater development. so long as the interlocal agreement with the other
district authorizes funds to be used for that purpose.

13.2.5 A permit holder who transports groundwater for use outside of the District shall either:

a) Install and maintain a meter that accurately measures the volume of groundwater
transported out of the District. The meter shall be read each month, and the volume of
groundwater exported must be reported to the District using a form or_electronic
reporting system approved by the District. The meter must comply with all applicable




requirements of Rule 5.5. including requirements related to installation. reporting,
accuracy. and testing. The permit holder must maintain accurate records of the volume
exported and the purpose of the export. and such records must be made available for
inspection by the District or its representatives.

Or

b) Elected not to install a meter and instead pav the export fee prescribed in Rule 13.2.1
on the total amount of groundwater authorized under the applicable permit. regardless
of the total actual volume of groundwater exported out of the District.

13.2.6 A permit holder who transports groundwater outside of the District and does not install a
meter to measure the volume of groundwater exported out of the District shall be invoiced an
export tee based on the full annual volume of groundwater their permit authorizes for export
outside of the District.







Clearwater Underground Water Conservation District
Notice of Public Hearing on District Rules

Notice is hereby given that the Board of Directors of the Clearwater Underground Water
Conservation District (“District”) will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, August 27th, 2025, at
1:30 PM at the Clearwater Boardroom located at 640 Kennedy Court, Belton, Texas 76513 to
discuss, consider, receive public comment, and potentially act on proposed amendments to District
Rules 3, 12, and 13. The proposed amendments align the District’s rules with recent legislation
enacted by the Texas Legislature during the 2025 Legislative Session. The proposed amendments

to the District Rules also include changes to Rule 13.2 regarding export of groundwater out of the
District.

All interested members of the public are invited to participate and comment orally and in writing.
A copy of the proposed amendments to the District Rules may be requested by email at

schapman{dcuwcd org and may be reviewed or copied on the District’s website at
https://cuwed.ory/.

Dated: August 7, 2025

By: (QQ*'J( QBN ) 5

2
S

&5 = A
T et (G =2 a4l
Dirk Aaron o =
—— 1
General Manager .
Clearwater Underground Water Conservation District -

7
SO

Lh@8 ¥ L-90

INILSOd ¥O4 QdAl



THURSOAY AUGUST 2, 2025 | IOLLEEN DALY HERALD

New study sheds light on ChatGPT’s alarming interactions with teens

(B8 nEws

BYMATT O"BRIEN AND BARBARA ORTUTAY ing more than half of ChatGPT's 1,200 these kinds of scenarios right” with tools
APTECHNOLOGY WRITERS responses as dangerous. to “better detect signs of mental or emo-
“We wanted to test the guardrails,” tional distress” and improvements to the

ChatGPT will tell 13-year-olds how to
get drunk and high, instruct them on
how to conceal eating disorders and even
compose a heartbreaking suicide letter
to their parents if asked, according to
new research from a watchdog group.

said Imran Ahmed, the group’s CEQ.
“The visceral initial response is, ‘Oh
my Lord, there are no guardrails.’ The
rails are completely ineffective. They're
barely there — if anything, a figleaf”
OpenAl, the maker of ChatGPT, satd

chatbot’s behavior

‘The study published Wednesday comes
as more people —adults as well as
children - are turning to artificial intel-
ligence chatbots for information, ideas
and companionship.

‘The Associated Press reviewed more after viewing the report Tuesday that About 800 million people, or roughly
than three hours of interactions between its work is ongoing in refining how the 10% of the world's population, are using
ChatGPT and researchers posing as chatbot can “identify and nspond appro-  ChatGPT, according to a July report from PRI KIGSONTD
vulnerable teens. The chatbot ty priately in JPMorgan Chase. Chat GPT appicon is seen on a smariphone
provided warnings against rlsky acuvity “Some conversations with ChatGPT “lt s technology that has the po|enllal screen, Monday, in Chicago.
but went on to deliver startlingly detailed may start out benign or v but bl 'mous leaps in

and personalized plans for drug use, calo- can shift into more sensitive territory” lty and human understanding,” Ahmed reading a trio of emotionally devastating

rie-restricted diets or self injury the company said in a statement. said. “And yet at the same time isan suicide notes that ChatGPT generated

‘The researchers at the Center for OpenAl didn't directly address the enabler in a much more destructive, for the fake profile of a 13-year-old girl
Countering Digital Hate also repeated report’s findings or how ChatGPT affects malignant sense.” with one letter tailored to her parents
their inquiries on a large scale, classify-  teens, but said it was focused on “getting Ahmed said he was most appalled after  and others to siblings and friends.

iline, anytime at

W‘W‘Wlﬂﬂﬂf Wws.com
2545017500

ikdhnews com

DAY HERALD

Classifieds

ADVERTISE NOW IN SELL YOUR STOFF 0NLINE & IN PRINT WITH A DISPLAY AD in TBE MARKETPLAGE
'WITH DRLINE AMD PRINT BUNOLED TOGETHER AT AMAZING RATES, THES &3 TOQ GOOD TO PASS LIF| CALL (254) 501-7500 TOOAYY
ety b
18.75

youru
4 UNES FOR 2 DAYS
Po-Paymart Rapdred

on

2 SIGNS Wnn
2 SHEETS Fhewms

;smw AS  1250% | 275%

ummr AL of the following:
Durlipun ptpprngan CONEEEAS HEGAAID evwatciece. TR .

——.c-—-—

Killgen Daily Herald — ‘ lz' e G rage sales
S SIFIED) /Eastate Sales
DEPARTMENT o
(254) 501-7500 otices el sae oo
CLASSIFIED 2 Refrigators, cabinet, bar, sz pby A R
The sz::: l‘:’n’l‘l,§ Herald c,: :2”;4;33':.‘71 28 ('r“”" 560 {83} a4
will not be responsible Legal Notices
for more than one (1)
ey | namung | SR 2 NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC
Lo o the Claseifiad nE’:';L':'ﬁ&':'?"&'f Pon In accordance wih Aicle 152013 Local Wl Code, the Commissioners’ Court of Boll
Deportment 5o that they e 'ublic County heceby notiSes the public that at their regular meeting Monday, August 25, 2025 at 9.00
<an be corrected and Hearing on District Rules 51 am the following proposed amount of annwal salaries, expenses and alowances of electad county
P‘:;::L::a’::by;\?ml Noueelshomb&ﬂweﬂ that chalu. Bhales, A and precinct officials wit be presenied during a budgel hearing for the Fscal year 2025-2026.
your ad prior 10 the firsc i the g,‘;’am{:fgf" K& n!'-’"&'l?-'-’ gmﬂ Pl COUNTY/PRECINGT COUNTY| STATE | TOTAL | COUNTY | STATE TOTAL
ton Dalky Harald ot Underground Water el OFFICIAL SALARY | SALARY | SALARY |INCREASE | INCREASE | INCREASE
not assume responibitity val Distric 8y Adl-w Es!ah Sales
beyand the costof the ot || (DISACE) Wi DOK 2 e Kliean Eotate Sale: COURT af LAW JUDGE | 122000 | 105000 227000 | 21000 | 21000 | 42000
MEELL ATIol PREY ?omos Thure-Sat Atg. 7th-oth looom | i i i
al )
Pl Gloarwater Bosraioom | a"b"'cg COURT ot AW JUDGE | 122,000 | 105000 227000 | 21000 | 21000 | 42000
Classified ad must bo tad at ann losted by Castaways 8B
b g e o || 2te Discuine, Sonmioeg ] | Ao Sale Bervichs A6 DISTRICT JUDGE | 16000 | 0120 219280 | - | am
Friday 8:00am - S:00pm recaive public comment, W (13848)
D e et and potontially acton | 3902 Aty s’é‘.‘a.;’.’.'.‘%"'" 2640 DRTRICT IUDGE | 18900 | 106417 | 203417 | - AT | aan
. :ﬁmcmle 3, 12, and 13 | Home
i “Tha proposed amand. | ¢, ursasMisc ',‘,’,;";,f,o, 169 DISTRICT JUDGE | 18000 | 192500 | 210500 | - w250 | 250
CLASSIFIED HOURS menl: uuqn the Dlnuk:l 8 {platas of BBﬁ 1)6)
Monday - Friday e culas with enlckin, Sausage rice 2Tth OISTRICT JUDGE | 18,000 | 175000 | 193,000 B 35000 | 35000
8:00 arm - $:00 prm logislation enacted b the | andbedns with bioad BK8)
Closed - Sawrday & || ToxasLogisiature o "3,’,"“’ and T drink ™ 146 DISTRICT JUDGE | 18000 | 175000| 193000 | - B/O0 | 3500
Sunday Ll Lo 1X6X0) : E _ _
smendments 1o the H -
sooDEAOLINES | o e RTS 4783 DISTRICT JUOGE | 18000 | 75000 18300 B[00 | 36000
X putlication data Aty Saant Mo ndd DISTRICTATIORNEY | 18400 | 175000 193000 | - 3000 | 35000
warw KOHNEWS.com || weler ot of the Diztiet COURT st LAW JUDGE | 87,000 | 105000| 162000 | 14,000 | 21000 | 35000
A‘i’f‘ mlof:'s‘énd mem::::s of # Y8 ) ) 1 ) iy !
pariShats and comment [ 15039 | 34650 | 15048 | 252 | 94w | 1w
Srally ana in wriing 96213 | 86925 | 162138 - 1925 | 15
Rental amendments to ma District 141,700 N 141,700 = 779
enrails Rules may be requestad by 105,847 - 105847 | - 076
email at e 105,847 - 105847 - 016
ma: ‘copied 05847 - | 105847 : 076
Z| Houses on{.he Dmﬂdswcbsﬂn at
hitns Henved aro/ 108,542 105,542 . 2070
(Legal Notice published 100,000 - 100,000 - 10,000
MOUNTAINVIEW | intho ileon Diaty Horald 00000 | - {100,000 2,000
RENTALS L 100000 - | 100000 - 10,000
€98-2077 | 100,000 ] Y
100000 - | 100000 - 10,000
100000 |- | 100,000 - 10,000
3BR, 1.5BA
$1.3g%7’\o..§zoo dep. :ﬁ :g - ::
lap. N X .
$45 Appﬁl:.ﬁon Fae 98,953 - 58,953 n a1
98953 | - 98953 . )
JP P B %0000 | - 90,000 - 454
CONSTABLE Pet. #1 82188 | - 62968 | 1 . 612
CONSTABLE Pet 12 82188 | - 82168 | 1612 f 612
CONSTABLE Pct. 43 82,188 | - 62,168 | 1612 B 612
CONSTABLE Pct. ¥4 82166 | - 82168 | 1002 - 612

MULFIPLE POSITIONS AVAILABLE
FULL/PART-TIME WORK

@ POSITION: Newspaper Carrior
PART-TIME

Eam wp to $700 - $1000 monthly delivering
the newspaper for the Dalbly Hersld!

WE'RE HIRING!,

JOIN OUR | TEAM |

¥ kdhnews.com

b s s 1 b

g v e

o

KiLLEEN Dairy HERALD

@ POSITION: Digttal Advartising
Account Executives
FULL-TIME
Excelent starting pay & incentive plan!

(1) Disict Court Judges recetve $18,000 per year from the Counly per Gavi Code 659.012 and 32001
The remainder of the salary is peid directy from the Stats of Texas.

(2) District Attomey receives $18,000 per yeas from the County per Govl Code 46.003. The ramamdes
of the salary Is paid directly from the State of Texas.

(3) County Court at Law Judge's salary inchudes State provided funds of $105,000 in 2ccordance with
Govi Code 25.0015

{4) The County Attomey's salary includes Sta's provided funds of $85,925 in accordance with Govt
Code 46.0031. tn addidon, the Sta provides $19,075 for expenses of the County Attomey's Office.
(5) The County Judge’s sakacy incudes Stale provided funds of $34,650 as a supplement to the
constional County Judge for judicial duses.

(6) These sakanes are statutorly set.

(7) These Judges will mave to a new State salary bracket in FY 26, due 1o tanure as a Judge,
which wil result in an addiBonal increase.

{8) The Taxas 8th requived salary i for 28 hudges and F

{9} The Justice of lhe Peace satary includes a $10,000 vehicle alowance.

This meeting will Lake place in the Comenissioners’ Courl Room. 2nd Floor, 101 East Cen'ral Avenve.
Betton, Texas.

DAVID BLACKBURN
COUNTY JUDGE

(3 ubished in the Iksen Daly August 7, 2025.)

L e L e e U




Londscaping,

Ycud Aotk

Grorsy nwmv i

$at bo.
LONE STAR CRADIKG

Landscaping,

82 s 82
$ALLEY-S TRUCKING o
ek Crore B S B9

[ Raofing,
(s 86
‘OLD SCHOOL ROOF-

Employment

Employment

NEED EXTRA INCOME?

Supplement your present income with a newspaper
delivery route. For just a few hours a night you could

Musical
Goods

186

daliver mest DK Ve, Catl
B0

Sales

Temple

Eareg soes 200

Downsie
Febs
Lorse l-mlvu
Tias I G0 Trod
DECORATOR'S DREAM
ESTATE SALE IN
TEMPLE
mARAPAND

Zotmee MR keep your regular job and earn extra cash oier 'r:'::f :::::.
CALL CLANSIFIED o ettt monsy Ty
{254) 1184444 $soo SIGN ON BO You'Ts Snd THEN mosey wos U st
After 26 weeks GARA'g_i_’-SSALE Pet &
Route Available Now! Merchandise AVAH.AOBLE estock
Clearwater Underground Water Bi-Weekly inctged
Conservation District Gross Income 3 Lorse” s..-. Srie, sk
Notice of Public Hearing on District Rules || 4 Year 0% Fariy Frem Area ) {est.) food 184 |Eleeaiecd s e 230
st & miser v 1t 130 g o Davcary of Bakery Looking For Downtown Temple $330.00 uu ML | v e o s camen
v 4
”“' (Oatrer) =it ,-g‘ 9 O heonke oa "‘:’,:d"_";:“o:fh‘:_"" Applicants must have reliable transportation, valid driver's RN | hon ot ity ,?.',';",',‘,," tor "'* A0 T e
ﬁ,,_.“’;;‘_ T 'gf:‘:; o 43 Kenaty Cows || Som-1pm Tuss-Fel license and auto liability insurance in their name. e B
I (h"um.g. o o u;l."&:;‘-l 5"""}““““"'5* 3 Call Classified
Deais 1o Datrict Ruiey % 11 and 13 Tae e Wmn m e Contact the Circulation Department at 254-778-4444 Automotive
NHT CI:II'D: ;:”ln ’Qlﬂlell e ﬁ:l‘l.l »e 23108 S| K Dodgen 254-778' I I I l
Ve veson o revmscos ot e o 1 Lw & or stop by the office at 10 South Third St., Temple RESULTS...

Make your ad stand out

An necestra members of e pobikc ore mwed o from the rest! Mon I'n 8am - 5pm o | EVaseneet sheo ot atrtie | gurpm—_ry
Ak ]| B T A fanoi Lt o 299
be fequeiled by email of I'EMPLE DAILY TELEGRAM oy )

may De revmed oF cepied oa 1he Desiricty Ilh«n vl Clossifind JOHNSON nos 7OID
Niiot-Kewed 01w Ll T (254) 7784444 234) 77844“ "‘""‘ v Sruce

SERVICE FINDER

Antique Appraisals

Concrete Construction

Cabinets / Roofing / Construction

BELTRAN Customers are "
| Troy’s o | PR =Sz | | e America Roofing
“fl CONSTRUCTION "
254-047-1800 | | Auto Care Construction, Inc. conmerca §f FLEAAE | ooer oo & Remodeling
| AnticueAcpratats ||| | Authorized | ¥ | ROOFING | < Dovewers s rotos || SERVICE || | FREE ESTIMATES “INGOD WE TRUST”
- Antique Restoration || Yokohama ] & Custom Cabinets & Screens  * Seamiess Gutters Bl | - retotner worts FINDER' * Roofing « Concrete Work * Room
'I‘ ~Estate Liquidations Dealer i * Counter Tnpt * Wlndwl Replaeemen( i |° Conerate Edging. etc. Cal] ' Addlll.ﬂlu * Dywall « Lur.lmg
WePuchise: 1818 W, Ave. M | f§ Locally SO Y Saw Hote on F e o « Remodeling » New Construction « Etc.
Stertg Sivr, . B anwork 254.939.1934 H | ow Temple Killeen
| doiereney (|| Temele | B vragoubletoonsiruct ma | e[ Pebaiment || 254-773-7111 254-213-7623
| Fremtoes || 1254-791-8769 @& = e Mgty 254-TT8-4444 Waco 254-757-1625
I— Customers are
Ron Bickel Construction | [htitil) BNCCSIN IGLASS PINR IR
and IN THE DARK LWL [DOCTOR, : ALL bustness. .
Bickel Roofing [CICC | INSTALLATION | iy | <0001 B pome |t
Family owned and operated since 1972 ﬂnﬂ?tm :‘;"'" Sciectionof Guttes! RO RO JERTS SERVICE
founded by Marine Veteran, R9n Bickel. .IM wh: CCAGILL BN 754-563-2826 mER
We work side by side to help you with any roofing Auto, Home Searmives «Coi te
or construction needs you may have. Illmh & Business Malt Aound A Le:l‘:lrleng cCall ouexd
Free Estimates and Insurance Experts | |254-773-1805 S iyl * | sasme | | Private Fence| | Department
I8  call 254-791-0027 fepa, o o AR |254.773-0244 | |254-813-8043 “Landscaping zsz.-m-r‘;;ﬂ:.“
i ¥ NK < Q
[sHEETROCK Electrical AT STy Popelka Paint | [GIRALS ||\ Pina ¢ |
REPAIR P RANDYMAN 1te CONTRACTING, INC. L Landscaping
Quotes *Electrical Bity Popetta, President Commerdial Tree Trimmin;
Urywall& Texture | TSRV | -Remodeling Established In 1925 and Residential o ng
righten You? J tepiiass « Residential & Commercial Interior & Exterior Lawn Care:
remodel: Call us! * Interior & Exterior . MMC';O - Edging
m.'.’;' *| |Free estimates| | .Tite «Room Additions = Wood Prrvacy Fence Palnting ey R Raks Loavos
Match all textu, avdoud | | -Painting +Kitchen Remodels | |{ yous outes Celebrating 100 Years freeBimaes | | Privacy Fencing
e N z.l;xsanlos <Bath Remadels Eviction Clesn Outs in Business! w’i“:“w. Power Washing
RUDY’S Blostelo | [254-624-0688| | Sirie " | |rreeesnmires Free Estimates o insured o mrwatoded || reo estimates
254-7010808] PEYWTERTIE | Sotebaswsiel | | 254.913-7535 | | 254-563-3535 254-773-9944 718-9765
— = A S
NAGY RUD yls e "al'k Gilimeister R%I:\ylllflgéll(tg.%%ggl::g :
PLUMBING REPAIG & REWODEL, Lic, nonﬁng
= wasanr The otiginal roofing compary that has baen farnlly owned and operated
¥ and serving Bell Co mtymumwnmymm T
 Romodel shegan Over 45 Years Experience mmummmqmmmmmmqumm
Serving All Of Your 3 Generations of f Srectywith
Phanbing Needs Free Roof L .Elmlh A+ Rating yougel the
sured fight ,ummmmmvmmhmmm
254-760-9334 Wi D3 T3 Tool® "0 Cal s Dss KA . Woa offer Free Inspections & Free Estimates
prsemmen) |t Call 2547510899 | 254 3600 ey 254-760.8080 - treesgyohenom
-903-9550) Rudy's! Rudy’s! Rudy's! mgroofs.com - oM. 12290 State Hwy 53 « Yample, TX
MARK SYMANK America Roofing | [BATHROOM J.R. ASH| QESITISNY FapyAyintsll |ROSERTs DAVID
TREE SERVICE and so will I! a
= SAFETY BARS TREE CO. :
& Remodeling Provide and install ADA Compliant Topping i New Construction
- .| | satety Bars for your tubs, showers Stump Crinding COMPLETE
FREE ESTIMATES "IN GOD WE TRUST Bers or yoiw bkt o T mning TREE SERVICE
« Roafing » Concrete Work » Room emoxa & FIREWOOD
Addiions » Drpwall - Leveling :;N Professional "},‘ff;,‘w';f‘“ 25 vears enporicnce
* Remodeling * New Construction « Ete. lnslalhlwn in Business .mm,“,,‘w.u e
Temple Killeen Brian Heffrner L | |+ Fence Repair il g DAVID RUSH
254.773-7111 254-213-7623 | @ 254-718-3490 Ui 19 Years 41 z 8335 3l e Esimates Z%iﬁtzrﬂ
Waco 264-767-1625 SeringTenpe ekon Sekato & suoatog s TN Faleamandl | 254-913-6929

Place a Classified Ad

f © Call:254-778-4444 - Email: tdtads@tdinews.com - Online: tdtnews.com/classifieds
or stop by at 10 South 3rd Street, Temple

TEMPLE DAILY TELEGRAM







RESOLUTION

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CLEARWATER
UNDERGROUND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT MEETING HELD
AUGUST 27, 2025

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AND AMENDING CERTAIN
DISTRICT RULES

WHEREAS, the Clearwater Underground Water Conservation District (CUWCD) is a
political subdivision of the State of Texas and underground water conservation district created and
operating under and by virtue of Article XVI, Section 59, of the Texas Constitution; Texas Water
Code Chapter 36; the District's enabling act, Act of May 27, 1989, 71st Legislature, Regular Session,
Chapter 524 (House Bill 3172), as amended by Act of April 25, 2001, 77th Legislature, Regular
Session, Chapter 22 (Senate Bill 404), Act of May 7, 2009, 81st Legislature, Regular Session, Chapter
64 (Senate Bill 1755), and Act of May 27, 2015, 84th Legislature, Regular Session, Chapter 1196,
Section 2 (Senate Bill 1336)(omnibus districts bill); and the applicable general laws of the State of
Texas;

WHEREAS, there are currently rules of the District in effect establishing procedural and
substantive regulations governing activities within the jurisdiction of the District;

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors (the "Board") determined that further
review, amendment, repeal, and adoption of the District's rules is necessary to implement the
requirements of the District's enabling act, Texas Water Code Chapter 36, and the laws of the
State of Texas, and to accomplish the objectives of the District;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Clearwater Underground Water Conservation
District (“District”) instructed the District’s General Manager to advertise and post that a public
hearing is to be held on Wednesday, August 27, 2025, 1:30 p.m. at the District Office located at
640 Kennedy Court, Belton, Texas 76513 to discuss, consider, receive public comment, and
potentially act on proposed amendments to the District Rules to comply with action by the 89
Texas Legislature as it relates to Petitions for Rule Changes and the proposed amendments to
the District Rules include changes to (1) District Rule 3 describing drawdown of the water table
in accordance with Section 36.107, Texas Water Code and the amount of Modeled Available
Groundwater corresponding to the most recently approved Desired Future Conditions per SB 1583;
(2) to District Rule 12.3 Rule Enforcement on how the Board may recover a civil penalty per HB
5560 to increase penalty to $25,000 per day per violation; (3) to District Rule 13.2 Groundwater
Export Fee at the maximum allowable rate at which the District may assess a transport fee per
HB 1689;

WHEREAS, the District will receive, and incorporate suggestions during the Rule Making
Hearing on August 27, 2025 related to the proposed rule changes and that provide clarification when
the District may and/or shall require all or portions proposed amendments to the District Rules to
comply with action by the 89" Texas Legislature and the proposed amendments to the District Rules
include changes to proposed amendments to District Rules 3, 12, and 13. The proposed amendments
align the District’s rules with recent legislation enacted by the Texas Legislature during the 2025
Legislative Session known as HB 2078, SB 1583, HB 5560 and HB 1689. The proposed amendments



to the District Rules also include changes to Rule 13.2 regarding recording and reporting export of
groundwater out of the District.

WHEREAS, it is recognized that the state's preferred method of groundwater
management is through rules developed, adopted, and promulgated by groundwater conservation
districts, in order to provide for the conservation, preservation, protection, recharging, and
prevention of waste of groundwater, and of groundwater reservoirs or their subdivisions; that the
District shall adopt and enforce rules to implement Texas Water Code Chapter 36; and that District
rules may limit or alter ownership and rights in groundwater, as specifically provided by Texas Water
Code §§ 36.0015, 36.002, and 36. 101, and other provisions of Chapter 36 of the Texas Water Code;

WHEREAS, the notice and hearing requirements set forth pursuant to Texas Water Code
§36.101 have been met, specifically, wherein the District Board conducted a rulemaking hearing
on August 27, 2025; the District published notices in two newspapers of general circulation, posted
notice in place readily accessible to the public at the District office, provided notice to the Bell County
Clerk, and made a copy of the proposed rules available both during and after the normal business
hours of the District at least 20 days before the rulemaking hearing held August 27, 2025;

WHEREAS, the Board reviewed and considered public comments during its
deliberations at the District's rulemaking hearing;

WHEREAS, during its review and deliberation of the proposed rules amendments, the
District has taken into consideration all groundwater uses and needs within the District, and has
worked to develop rules which are fair and impartial, pursuant to Texas Water Code§ 36. 10l(a);

WHEREAS, Texas Water Code § 36.10I provides the District with the authority to make and
enforce rules, including rules limiting groundwater production based on tract size or the spacing of
wells, to provide for conserving, preserving, protecting, and recharging of the groundwater or of a
groundwater reservoir or its subdivisions in order to control subsidence, prevent degradation of water
quality, or prevent waste of groundwater and to carry out the powers and duties provided by this
Chapter 36 of the Texas Water Code and the District's enabling act; and

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the adoption, repeal, and amendment of certain District
rules are merited to support the District's efforts to manage the groundwater located within the
District, and that the adoption, repeal, and amendment of rules are supportable under Texas law.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:
The above recitals are true and correct.

The attached rules of the District are incorporated herein by reference and hereby approved
to reflect the adoption of new rules and repeal and amendment of existing rules, as reflected in the
attachment subject only to those modifications described in the motion adopting this resolution.
These rules shall be used to expeditiously and effectively implement the provisions of the District's
enabling act, Texas Water Code Chapter 36, and other applicable laws, and to govern procedures and
other activities within the jurisdiction of the District. Any conflicting provisions in any District
policy, order, or bylaw, as may be recognized and determined by the Board, are hereby repealed.



The Board instructs its consultant and legal counsel to finalize the rules to conform to the
Board's motion to adopt the resolution and hereby authorizes and directs the District's General
Manager to compile and publish these rules and make them available for use and inspection at
the District's office and provide copies to any person or persons upon request.

The Board and General Manager are further authorized to take any and all action
necessary to implement this resolution.

This adoption of new rules and repeal and amendment of existing rules shall be effective
the date of passage of this resolution reflected on the date of execution below.

AND IT IS SO ORDERED.

Upon motion duly made by Director , and seconded by Director
and upon discussion, the Board voted in favorand _____ opposed, abstained, and
absent, and the motion thereby on the 27" day of August, 2025.

CLEARWATER UNDERGROUND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

By:

Jody Williams
Board President

ATTEST:

C. Gary Young
Board Secretary

Dirk Aaron
Assistant Secretary






Clearwater Underground
Water Conservation District

STAFF REPORT

Board Meeting Agenda Item # 6 & 7

August 27, 2025 Administrative Fee Schedule

Agenda Items:

6. Hold Public Hearing on the proposed changes to the Administrative Fee Schedule.
7. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if necessary, to adopt changes to the
Administrative Fee schedule, by resolution.

Narrative:

In January 2025, the Board discussed establishing an annual review and associated hearing of the
Administrative Fee Schedule and transport fees to take place before the adoption of the District
budget. A 10-day notice for a public hearing on the Administrative Fee Schedule was posted with
the county clerk on August 15™, 2025 at 11:41 AM and posted on the District website.

Per Distrct Rule 13.1, the Board by resolution, may establish a schedule of fees for administrative acts of
the District, including but not limited to the cost of reviewing and processing permit Applications, renewal
Applications, and the cost of permit hearings, and such administrative fees shall not unreasonably exceed
the cost to the District for performing such administrative acts.

Proposed Amendments:

Non-Exempt, Level II Fees
1. Spilt the previously listed Combination Drilling and Operating Permit Fee for Level II
Drilling and Operating permits, based on District Rule 6.6.4 and definitions
2. Increase all Level II permit fees (any withdrawal request over 1 acre-foot and less than 5
acre-feet) to a $400.00, non-progressive Drilling Permit Fee and a $600.00, non-
progressive Operating Permit Fee
Export Surcharge
1. Increase fee to reflect the maximum allowable rate of $0.206 per thousand gallons, per
proposed District Rule changes

District Rule 6.6.4: The Board may only grant a Combined Drilling and Operating permit to an Applicant
seeking to Drill and Operate a Water Well within the District for beneficial use, on a tract that is equal to
or greater than 2 acres, but not more than 10 acres, the production of which does not exceed 1 Acre-foot
per year.

Definition: “Combined Drilling and Operating Permit” means a permit issued by the Board that authorizes
the Applicant to Drill and Operate a Water Well within the District for beneficial use, on a tract that is

equal to or greater than 2 acres, but not more than 10 acres, the production of which does not exceed 1
Acre-foot per year.

GM Recommendations:

v Adopt proposed changes to the Administrative Fee Schedule, by resolution.




water

£ Conseriaton Datres

Administrative Fee Schedule

Every drap counts!

Per District Rule 13.1, the Clearwater UWCD Board has established a schedule of administrative fees for the District by
resolution. Applications to the District are not accepted until receipt of all applicable fees are received by the District office.

Exempt Well Application Fees

New/Replacement/Unregistered Well No Fee

Non-Exempt Permit Application Fees

All Drilling and Operating Permit applications of 5-acre feet or more are a two-step process with progressive fees that
have a maximum cost not to exceed the following:

Drilling Permit Fee Maximum $7,500.00
Operating Permit Fee Maximum $10,000.00
Combined Fee Maximum Rate $17,500.00

The base fee ussessed for each permit level includes the base annual withdrawal amount. The progressive fees apply
10 the requested amount that exceeds the base annual withdrawal amount. See the Table of Fees below.

)

. -.Annual y ’ ! Operating Operating
Withdrawal o T - - f
Titlet | e ‘Withdrawal Limit Condition Drilling Permit | Drilling Permit Permit Permit
| ; (@c-t) ! e Base Fee Progressive Fee? | Progressive Fee? | Progressive Fee?
Level I, 0 Up to and including | ac-ft $_ 150.00 = ; = [ Deleted: !
Level I1, 1 Up to but not including 5 ac-ft $_ _ADQLOD ] $_ .. 500,00 < [ Deleted: ! ]
Level 111 5 Up to but not including 130 ac-ft $  400.00 $ 15.00 $ 600.00 $ 20.00 [ Deleted: 150 ]
Level IV 130 Equal to or Greater than 130 ac-ft $ 2,200.00 $ 7.50 $  3,300.00 $ 10.00 [Deleted: .00 ]
JLevel Luses a Combination Permit. Combination Fees are listed under Drilling Fees. [ Deleted: $  210.00 ]
2Progresive fee unit is per acre-foot
[ Deleted: - ]
A Non-Exempt Well (N3) satisfies one or more of the following: Table of Fees [ Deleted: - ]
) St Combined Drilling Operating  Deteted: ! ]
A groundwater well used for domestic purposes or for Fee Fee Fee [Del rod: and Level 1 \
watering livestock or poultry that is drilled, equipped, or etec: and Leve )
completed, capable of producing groundwater based on 0.5 § 15000 -
identified need, column pipe size, and  prescribed 1 $ 15000 | - :
management zone, to be located on a tract of land consisting 2 $ LL.00000 | S 40000 | & 60000 { Deleted: 360 ]
of less than 10-acres and greater than or equal to 2-acres of
X 3 $ 100000, 5 4000Q | 5 6000Q :
land, subdivided on or after March 1, 2004, is a Non-Exempt Lol 5 {Deleted 00 ]
wells (N3) Classified as a Level I per the fee schedule 4 Sl s e | xRl  Deleted: - ]
: 5 $ 1,000.00 $ 400.00 | $ 600.00 s -
A groundwater well used for other beneficial purposes, p 500 {Deleted J
capable of producing groundwater for a prescribed need, is a $ 187500 § § 75000 § 112500 {Deleted: $ 57000 ]
Non-Exempt Well (N3), Classified as Level I — Level IV per 55 $ 2,75000 | $ 1,100.00 | $ 1,650.00 [r feted: - j
the fee schedule 80 $ 362500 [ $ 145000 | $§ 2,175.00 ( Deteted: - ]
A groundwater well used for purposes other than domestic, 105 $ 450000 | $ 180000 | § 2.700.00 { Deteted: s 730.00 )
livestock or poultry, Classified as Level I — Level IV per the 130 $ 550000 | $ 220000 | $ 3,300.00 [ Deleted: - )
fee schedule 155 $ 593750 | § 237500 | § 3.562.50 (Deteted: - D
A groundwater well used to serve two or more homes, with a 180 $ 637500 | $§ 2,550.00 | $ 3.825.00
shared well agreement, on tracts of land less than 10 acres and 205 $ 681250 | § 2,725.00 | $ 4,087.50
equal to or greater than 2 acres, Classified as Level I — Level 230 $ 725000 | $ 290000 | § 4.350.00
IV per the fee schedule ( Deleted: Revised 110172022

| CUWCD Aduministrative Fee Schedule elupted OR2772025



Administrative Fees

Groundwater Availability Certification’ $1,250.00
Encumbrance Agreement Review & Recording Fee! $150.00
Encumbrance Agreement Recording Fee (when District forms are used)’ $50.00
Shared Well Agreement Review & Recording Fee' $150.00
Shared Well Agreement Recording (when District forms are used) $ 50.00
Export Surcharge? (per thousand gallons) $0.206

{ Deleted: 0.025

T Fees shown are for administrative review, technical review, and legal consultation on behalf of the Applicant and the District.
Full payment of all fees is required before the application may be deemed administratively complete. No fee is required for a
change in well ownership for either an exempt well or a non-exempt well.

2 As allowed in Texas Water Code, Chapter 36.122(e)(2)

Printing & Copying ees

District Document (max 1 copy) No Fee
Miscellaneous Copying (max 1 copy) No Fee
Map Size (8.5x11,8.5x 14, 11 x 17) No Fee

The above fees include documents such as Rules, Management Plan, Bylaws, Annual Report, etc. This does not include studies
such as historic hydrogeologic reports, groundwater availability studies, Well Completion Reports, and any other reports that
can be provided electronically. Studies are available at cost.

Application Forms are available on the District website: www.cuwcd.org

Technical and legal expenses often exceed the fees established by Clearwater UWCD.

All additional costs over the established fee for administrative, technical, and legal review will be covered by
Clearwater UWCD.

Submit assessed fees to Clearwater UWCD, P.O. Box 1989, Belton, Texas 76513

g 700 Kennedy Court

& d.
& 254.933.0120 == cuwcc.org Belton, Texas 76513

CUWCD Adnministrative Fee Schedule Adepted 08272015

 Deteted: Revised 1110112022







Clearwater Underground Water Conservation District
Notice of Public Hearing on Administrative Fee Schedule

Notice is hereby given that the Board of Directors of the Clearwater Underground Water
Conservation District (“District”) will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, August 27th, 2025, at
1:30 PM at the Clearwater Boardroom located at 640 Kennedy Court, Belton, Texas 76513 to
discuss, consider, receive public comment, and potentially act on proposed amendments to the
District Administrative Fee Schedule. The proposed amendments align the District’s rules
regarding export of groundwater out of the District.

All interested members of the public are invited to participate and comment orally and in writing.
A copy of the proposed amendments to the Administrative Fee Schedule may be requested by
email at schapman@cuwcd.org and may be reviewed or copied on the District’s website at
https:/cuwcd.org/.

Dated: August 15, 2025

Dirk Aaron
General Manager

. . P
Clearwater Underground Water Conservation District ) — T
Dn &3 9Q
P o (] !
O . <
I R )
O Sl = B |

o™i f—
m-< on 8
o 20

O

O~ A

N ) .
— =
= o
>< - &
o






RESOLUTION
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CLEARWATER
UNDERGROUND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
MEETING HELD AUGUST 27, 2025

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE DISTRICT’S
ADMINISTRATIVE FEE SCHEDULE

WHEREAS, the Clearwater Underground Water Conservation District (CUWCD) is a
political subdivision of the State of Texas and underground water conservation district created and
operating under and by virtue of Article XVI, Section 59, of the Texas Constitution; Texas Water
Code Chapter 36; the District’s enabling act, Act of May 27, 1989, 71st Legislature, Regular Session,
Chapter 524 (House Bill 3172), as amended by Act of April 25, 2001, 77th Legislature, Regular
Session, Chapter 22 (Senate Bill 404), Act of May 7, 2009, 81st Legislature, Regular Session, Chapter
64 (Senate Bill 1755), and Act of May 27, 2015, 84th Legislature, Regular Session, Chapter 1196,
Section 2 (Senate Bill 1336)(omnibus districts bill); and the applicable general laws of the State of
Texas;

WHEREAS, § 36.205 of the Texas Water Code authorizes a groundwater conservation
district to set fees for administrative acts of the district, including fees for the filing of applications,
and provides that fees set by a district may not unreasonably exceed the cost to the district of
performing the administrative function for which the fee is charged;

WHEREAS, § 36.101 of the Texas Water Code authorizes a groundwater conservation
district to make and enforce rules to provide for conserving, preserving, protecting, and recharging
of the groundwater or of a groundwater reservoir or its subdivisions in order to control subsidence
or prevent waste of groundwater and to carry out the powers and duties provided by Chapter 36 of
the Texas Water Code;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District (the “Board”) initially adopted an
Administrative Fee Schedule for the District on February 1, 2002, and has subsequently amended
the Administrative Fee Schedule in accordance with both § 36.205 of the Texas Water Code and
District Rule 13.1 Permit Application Fee and Other Fees;

WHEREAS, District Rule 13.1 authorizes the Board to establish by resolution a schedule
of fees for administrative acts of the District, including but not limited to the cost of reviewing and
processing permit applications and renewal applications, and the cost of permit hearings, and
provides that such administrative fees shall not unreasonably exceed the cost to the District for
performing such administrative acts;

WHEREAS, the Board and District’s General Manager (“General Manager”) have
identified necessary revisions to the District’s Administrative Fee Schedule and have specifically
identified the need to revise the permit application fees and export surcharges set forth in the
District’s Administrative Fee Schedule;

WHEREAS, the General Manager has evaluated past, current and anticipated costs of the
District to perform the administrative functions associated with processing permit applications
submitted to the District, including but not limited to the technical and legal consultant costs



associated with processing permit applications, and has considered the District’s budget and any
impact to permit applicants and groundwater exporting entities by imposing increased
administrative fees; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager has developed and presented a recommendation on the
amount of the permit application fees and export surcharges based upon the above-referenced
considerations; and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to amend the District’s Administrative Fee Schedule to
specifically revise the District’s permit application fees and export surcharges.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1.

The Administrative Fee Schedule attached to this resolution is hereby incorporated
into this resolution.

The Administrative Fee Schedule attached to this resolution includes the revisions
made to the District’s permit application fees and export surcharges.

The Administrative Fee Schedule is revised and adopted in accordance with
District Rule 13.1 and § 36.205 of the Texas Water Code.

The Board of Directors finds that the fees established in the Administrative Fee
Schedule, including the permit application fees and export surcharges, are directly
related to the costs of the District to perform the administrative function, and do
not unreasonably exceed the costs of the District to perform the administrative
function.

The Board of Directors and/or General Manager are further authorized to take any
and all action necessary to implement this resolution.

The Administrative Fee Schedule for the District is effective as of the date of
adoption of this resolution by the Board of Directors.



AND IT IS SO ORDERED.

Upon motion duly made by , and seconded by , and upon
discussion, the Board voted in favor and opposed, and the motion thereby PASSED
on this 27" day of August, 2025.

Attachments: District Administrative Fee Schedule

CLEARWATER UNDERGROUND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

By:

Jody Williams
Board President

ATTEST:

C. Gary Young
Board Secretary

Dirk Aaron
Assistant Secretary



<Und=rgromc‘ flater Conservation District

\nm
Every drop counts!

Administrative Fee Schedule

Per District Rule 13.1, the Clearwater UWCD Board has established a schedule of administrative fees for the District by
resolution. Applications to the District are not accepted until receipt of all applicable fees are received by the District office.

Exempt Well Application Fees

New/Replacement/Unregistered Well No Fee
Non-Exempt Permit Application Fees
All Drilling and Operating Permit applications of 5-acre feet or more are a two-step process with progressive fees that
have a maximum cost not to exceed the following:
Drilling Permit Fee Maximum $7,500.00
Operating Permit Fee Maximum $10,000.00
Combined Fee Maximum Rate $17,500.00
The base fee assessed for each permit level includes the base annual withdrawal amount. The progressive fees apply
to the requested amount that exceeds the base annual withdrawal amount. See the Table of Fees below.
{ W:ll::::vlval Operating Operating
(4 bl x il 2 Drilling Permit | Drilling Permit Permit Permit
Title Amount Withdrawal Limit Condition : 2 . ; . 2
(@c-t) . Base Fee Progressive Fee? | Progressive Fee? | Progressive Fee
Level I 0 Up to and including 1 ac-ft $ 150.00 3 5 5
Level 11 1 Up to but not including 5 ac-ft $  400.00 4 $ 600.00 4
Level III 5 Up to but not including 130 ac-ft $  400.00 $ 15.00 $ 600.00 $ 20.00
Level IV 130 Equal to or Greater than 130 ac-ft $ 2,200.00 $ 7.50 $  3,300.00 $ 10.00
Level I uses a Combination Permit. Combination Fees are listed under Drilling Fees.
Progresive fee unit is per acre-foot
A Non-Exempt Well (N3) satisfies one or more of the following: Table of Fees
ft Combined Drilling Operating
A groundwater well used for domestic purposes or for 25t Fee Fee Fee
watering livestock or poultry that is drilled, equipped, or =T .
completed, capable of producing groundwater based on : $ 5000 | - -
identified need, column pipe size, and  prescribed 1 $ 15000 | - .
management zone, to be located on a tract of land consisting 2 $ 1,00000]| $ 40000 | § 600.00
of less than 10-acres and greater than or equal to 2-acres of
2 ) 3 $ 1,00000 | $ 40000 | $ 600.00
land, subdivided on or after March 1, 2004, is a Non-Exempt
wells (N3) Classified as a Level I per the fee schedule ) $ 100000 | § 40000 | $  600.00
. 5 $ 1,000.00 $ 40000 | $ 600.00
A groundwater well used for other beneficial purposes, £ PR e Lt
capable of producing groundwater for a prescribed need, is a = 20 LA BEARY
Non-Exempt Well (N3), Classified as Level I — Level IV per 55 $ 275000 | $ 110000 [ $ 1,650.00
the fee schedule 80 $ 362500 | $ 145000 | $ 2,175.00
A groundwater well used for purposes other than domestic, 105 $ 450000 | $ 180000 | $ 2700.00
livestock or poultry, Classified as Level I — Level IV per the 130 $ 5500.00 | $ 2,20000 | $ 3,300.00
fee schedule 155 $ 593750 | $ 237500 | $ 3,562.50
A groundwater well used to serve two or more homes, with a 180 $ 637500 | $ 255000 | $ 3,825.00
shared well agreement, on tracts of land less than 10 acres and 205 $ 681250 | $ 272500 | $ 4,087.50
equal to or greater than 2 acres, Classified as Level I — Level 230 $ 725000 | $ 290000 | $ 4350.00
IV per the fee schedule

CUWCD Administrative Fee Schedule

Adopted 08/27/2025




Administrative Fees

Groundwater Availability Certification’ $1,250.00
Encumbrance Agreement Review & Recording Fee! $150.00
Encumbrance Agreement Recording Fee (when District forms are used)! $50.00
Shared Well Agreement Review & Recording Fee! $150.00
Shared Well Agreement Recording (when District forms are used) $50.00
Export Surcharge? (per thousand gallons) $0.206

! Fees shown are for administrative review, technical review, and legal consultation on behalf of the Applicant and the District.
Full payment of all fees is required before the application may be deemed administratively complete. No fee is required for a
change in well ownership for either an exempt well or a non-exempt well.

? As allowed in Texas Water Code, Chapter 36.122(e)(2)

Printing & Copying Fees

District Document (max 1 copy) No Fee
Miscellaneous Copying (max 1 copy) No Fee
Map Size (8.5x11,8.5x 14,11 x 17) No Fee

The above fees include documents such as Rules, Management Plan, Bylaws, Annual Report, etc. This does not include studies
such as historic hydrogeologic reports, groundwater availability studies, Well Completion Reports, and any other reports that
can be provided electronically. Studies are available at cost.

Application Forms are available on the District website: www.cuwcd.org

Technical and legal expenses often exceed the fees established by Clearwater UWCD.

All additional costs over the established fee for administrative, technical, and legal review will be covered by
Clearwater UWCD.

Submit assessed fees to Clearwater UWCD, P.O. Box 1989, Belton, Texas 76513

@ 700 Kennedy Court
Belton, Texas 76513

N\ 254.933.0120 cuwcd.org

CUWCD Administrative Fee Schedule Adopted 08/27/2025






Clearwater Underground
Water Conservation District

STAFF REPORT

Board Meeting . Agenda Items #8, 9, & 10 .
August 27, 2025 District Budget & Tax Rate Adoption
for Tax Year 2025

Agenda Items:

8. Hold Public Hearing on the proposed tax rate for tax year 2025.

9. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if necessary, to adopt the District Budget for
FY2026.

10. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if necessary, to adopt the District tax rate for tax
year 2025, by resolution.

Narrative:

Truth-in-taxation requires local taxing units to make taxpayers aware of tax rate proposals. Taxing
units create a budget and adopt a property tax rate that supports that budget. The District must
comply with its hearing requirements, notice of no-new-rate and voter-approved rate, and finally
the tax rate adoption process. A 10-day notice for a public hearing on the proposed tax rate for tax
year 2025 and was posted with the county clerk on August 15", 2025 at 11:41 AM, printed in the
Temple Daily Telegram and Killeen Daily Herald, and posted on the District website with a draft
FY26 budget.

FY26 Draft Budget:

The attached budget worksheet includes the following columns from left to right:
FY25 year-to-date expenditures as of July 31, 2025
FY?25 original budget amount
FY25 amended budget as of July 31, 2025
. FY25 budget difference as of July 31, 2025
. FY26 proposed budget (staff reccommendations)

Tax Year 2025 Tax Rate:

e e e e _.___.__..,_..._._.”,_

"Tax Year 2025 Calculated | FY26 Total

i L e SR s R ___+_JLL§,L(; | Taxable Value
'No-New-Revenue Rate 0.002130/$100 $41,140, 989 596 |
A calculated rate that would provide the taxing unit with approximately
the same revenue that it received last year from property that was taxed
in both years. This does not include additional revenue from new
construction. (Last year’s levy minus lost property levy) divided by
(current total value minus new property value)
Proposed Rate 0.002230/$100
The tax rate that the taxing unit is considering for adoption.
Voter Approval Rate 0.002570/$100
This is the maximum tax increase allowed by law without triggering an
election. For a taxing unit other than a special taxing unit — (No-new-
revenue maintenance and operations tax rate times 1.035) plus current
debt plus unused increment rate.




The abl below summarizes histo

Sy i 'D Tax Income
| Total Taxable | y | |
Certified Totals | .~ Value . | Pr [ CoNnectea it BPercent oAl
Budget | | Rs 0 [ e Uncollected |
| | | % 1

- Tax ‘Tax Levy |

e T -_ [ B i cineea .
2022 Certified 30,154,268,369 | 0.002708 | 816,578 | 791,897 | 24,681 96.98% 879,078
Totals

2023 Certified 35,300,611,496 | 0.002372 | 837,331 820,612 16,719 98.00% 959,331
Totals

2024 Certified 38,395,489,939 | 0.002230 | 856,220 812,242 43,978 94.86% 940,420

Totals As of
06/30/2025

2025 Certified 41,140,989,596 | TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD
Totals

FY26 draft 0.002230 | 917,444 983,594
budget

The total taxable value in the attached Form 50-856 per line 47 from the Bell County Tax Appraisal
District is $41,140,989,596.00 after exemptions. This tax income is separated by the adjusted
current year taxable value at $39,931,124,988.00 and new value at $1,209,864,608.00.

The draft FY26 budget is based on an increase over the estimated No-New-Revenue Rate at the
proposed rate of 0.002230/$100 which reflects an approximate levy of $917,444.00 from property
taxes at a 100% collection rate. The levy projection does not reflect the potential reduction that
could occur based on the Tax Appraisal reduction per Form 50-856 at the end of the tax year.

The 2025 average homestead taxable value is $286,885, up 5.24% from the previous year. The
District’s proposed tax rate of 0.002230/$100 is $0.00010/$100 higher than the calculated No-New-
Revenue tax rate thus a difference of $0.29/year on the average appraisal value of a residence.

The District must adopt a tax rate by Sept 30™ or 60-days after certification. If the tax rate exceeds
the voter approval rate (over 3.5% of the no-new revenue rate), the District must adopt that rate 71-
days before the next uniform election date, 2025 General Election Date is November 4t

GM Recommendations:

v' The proposed tax rate at 0.002230/$100 is predicted to achieve the approximate tax levy
needed to support the draft budget as presented.







Clearwater Underground Water Conservation

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
October 2024 through September 2025

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

40005 -
40007 -
40010 -
40015 -
40020 -
40030 -
40035 -

Application Fee Income

Administrative/Recording Fees
Bell CAD Current Year Tax
Bell CAD Deliquent Tax

Interest Income

Transport Fee Income

Civil Penalties

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expense

50000 - Administrative Expenses
50100 - Audit

50200 - Conferences & Prof Development
50250 - Contingency Fund

50300 - Director Expenses

50305 -
50310 -
50315 -
50320 -
50325 -

At Large
Pct. 1
Pct. 2
Pct. 3
Pct. 4

Total 50300 - Director Expenses
50400 - Director Fees

50405 -
50410 -
50415 -

At Large
Pct. 1
Pct. 2

DRAFT

08/06/2025

Accrual Basis

9:52 AM

Oct "24 FY25 FY25 $ Over FY26
thr? Original Amended Budget Proposed NOTES
July '25 Budget Budget Budget
8,340.20 20,000.00 20,000.00 -11,659.80 10,000.00
100.00 500.00 500.00 -400.00 150.00
815,323.04  856,220.00  856,220.00 -40,896.96 917,444.00 Tax Rate TBD, 0.00223 for estimation
6,458.93 10,000.00 10,000.00 -3,541.07 10,000.00
47,364.67 45,000.00 45,000.00 2,364.67 45,000.00
982.86 8,700.00 8,700.00 -7,717.14 1,000.00 Potential rule change will affect FY27
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
878,569.70  940,420.00  940,420.00 -61,850.30 983,594.00
878,569.70  940,420.00  940,420.00 -61,850.30 983,594.00
8,400.00 8,400.00 8,400.00 0.00 8,650.00
3,733.37 7,800.00 7,800.00 -4,066.63 7,000.00 TWF Leadership Program $3000
0.00 9,927.00 7,277.00 -7,277.00 42,524.00
410.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 -1,090.00 1,500.00
410.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 -1,090.00 1,500.00
616.14 1,500.00 1,500.00 -883.86 1,500.00
480.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 -1,020.00 1,500.00
410.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 -1,090.00 1,500.00
2,326.14 7,500.00 7,500.00 -5,173.86 7,500.00
1,500.00 2,550.00 2,550.00 -1,050.00 2,550.00
0.00 2,550.00 2,550.00 -2,550.00 2,550.00
1,660.00 2,550.00 2,550.00 -900.00 2,550.00

Page 1 of 7



50420 - Pct. 3
50425 - Pct. 4
Total 50400 - Director Fees
50500 - Dues & Memberships
50550 - Election Expense
50600 - GMA 8 Expenses
50605 - Technical Committee
50610 - Administration
50615 - GAM Development
Total 50600 - GMA 8 Expenses

50650 - Central Texas Water Alliance
50700 - Meals
50800 - Mileage Reimbursements
50900 - Travel & Hotel
Total 50000 - Administrative Expenses
52000 - Salary Costs
52005 - Administrative Assistant
52010 - Educational Coord/Support Tech
52015 - Manager
52016 - Assistant General Manager
52020 - Part Time/Intern
52025 - Office Assistant/Field Tech
52040 - Health Insurance
52045 - Payroll Taxes & Work Comp
52050 - Retirement
52055 - Payroll Expenses
52060 - Freshbenies
Total 52000 - Salary Costs

DRAFT

Oct '24 FY25 FY25 $ Over FY26
thrta Original Amended Budget Proposed NOTES
July '25 Budget Budget Budget
1,800.00 2,550.00 2,550.00 -750.00 2,550.00
0.00 2,550.00 2,550.00 -2,550.00 2,550.00
4,950.00 12,750.00 12,750.00 -7,800.00 12,750.00
4,187.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 -813.00 5,000.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1,210.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 -1,290.00 2,000.00 KT -2026.003
2,321.75 2,500.00 2,500.00 -178.25 2,500.00 NTGCD mgmt cost
8,182.11 8,183.00 8,183.00 -0.89 10,000.00 NTGCD contract cost
11,713.86 13,183.00 13,183.00 -1,469.14 14,500.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 CTWA Admin Support
1,156.66 1,200.00 1,200.00 -43.34 1,200.00
5,239.66 5,500.00 5,500.00 -260.34 4,000.00
6,060.15 6,500.00 6,500.00 -439.85 5,000.00
47,766.84 77,760.00 75,110.00 -27,343.16 133,124.00
51,740.80 62,089.00 62,089.00 -10,348.20 63,641.00 2.5% COLA
46,196.70 55,436.00 55,436.00 -9,239.30 §9,822.00 2.5% COLA + $3,000
92,393.30  110,872.00 110,872.00 -18,478.70 100,000.00
60,000.00 72,000.00 72,000.00 -12,000.00 72,000.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
43,425.01 52,110.00 52,110.00 -8,684.99 53,413.00 2.5% COLA
39,596.52 45,160.00 45,160.00 -5,563.48 51,187.00 3 health plan, 2 stipend
24,279.09 30,310.00 30,310.00 -6,030.91 30,005.00
11,629.90 14,100.00 14,100.00 -2,470.10 12,350.00
547.71 750.00 750.00 -202.29 750.00
440.00 600.00 600.00 -160.00 600.00
370,249.03  443,427.00  443,427.00 -73,177.97 443,768.00

Page 2 of 7



53000 - Operating Expenses

53010 - Accounting/Bank Service Expense

53015 - Admin/Recording Fee Expenses
53020 - Advertisement
53030 - Appraisal District
53100 - Clearwater Studies
53105 - Trinity Studies

§3105.1 -
§3105.2 -
53105.3 -
5§3105.4 -
5§3105.5 -
53105.6 -

Pumping Distribution
Pumping Test
Synoptic

GAM Run

Mgmt Options

Water Quality Studies

Total 63105 - Trinity Studies
53110 - Edwards BFZ Studies

§3110.1 -
53110.2 -
§3110.3 -
531104 -
53110.6 -

Pumping Distribution
Pumping Test
Synoptic

Spring Shed (Baylor)
GAM Run

Total 53110 - Edwards BFZ Studies
53115 - Drought Contingency Plan

53120 - Endangered Species

§3120.1 -
§3120.2 -
53120.3 -
53120.4 -

Coalition
Reimburseable Order
Aquifer Study

DPS Petition

Total 53120 - Endangered Species

53125 - Environmental Flows

DRAFT

Oct ‘24 FY25 FY25 $ Over FY26
thr? Original Amended Budget Proposed NOTES
July '25 Budget Budget Budget
525.28 350.00 1,000.00 -474.72 1,000.00
72.00 500.00 500.00 -428.00 500.00
0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 -4,000.00 4,000.00
6,488.50 9,900.00 9,900.00 -3,411.50 9,630.00 BellCAD
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7,812.50 10,000.00 10,000.00 -2,087.50 10,000.00 KT - 2026.003
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 21,400.00 KT - 2026.004
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7,912.50 10,000.00 10,000.00 -2,087.50 31,400.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,500.00 Baylor-AFD Study
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Baylor-AJ-final (paying in FY25)
0.00 5,600.00 5,600.00 -5,600.00 0.00
0.00 5,600.00 5,600.00 -5,600.00 12,500.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 45,000.00 KT - 2026.005
0.00 17,355.00 17,355.00 -17,355.00 0.00 BelCor RHCP
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TXFW
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TX State - Student $31,500
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 17,355.00 17,355.00 -17,355.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 3 of 7



53130 - General Consulting
53130.1 - DFC Process
53130.2 - Eval of Rules
53130.3 - Eval. Hydrogeologic Report
53130.4 - Investigations
53130.5 - Geo Logging
53130.6 - Aquifer Monitor Well Tool
53130.7 - ASR Study
6§3130.8 - Data Release
53130.9 - CGMM Dashboard
Total 53130 - General Consulting
53135 - Monitor Well Construction/Equip
53140 - Monitor Wells Expenses
53141 - Weather Station Expense
53145 - Spring Flow Gauge
53150 - Water Quality
53155 - 3-D Visualization
Total 53100 - Clearwater Studies
53200 - Spring Flow Gage System
53205 - Op. & Maintenance
53210 - Installation
Total 53200 - Spring Flow Gage System
53300 - GIS Managemet/Analytics
53305 - Enhancements - Data Base
53306 - Hosting - Data Base
53310 - Hosting - PDI
53311 - Hosting - Website
53312 - Enhancements - Website

DRAFT

NOTES

Oct "24 FY25 FY25 $ Over FY26
thl'tl Original Amended Budget Proposed
July ‘25 Budget Budget Budget
0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 3,000.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3,391.50 5,000.00 5,000.00 -1,608.50 5,000.00
0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 1,500.00
17,691.25 21,500.00 21,500.00 -3,808.75 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7,406.25 44,500.00 44,500.00 -37,093.75 7,500.00
28,489.00 76,500.00 76,500.00 -48,011.00 17,000.00
20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 15,000.00
12,751.09 15,000.00 15,000.00 -2,248.91 10,000.00
0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3,279.15 4,500.00 4,500.00 -1,220.85 4,500.00
0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.00
72,431.74  155,955.00  155,955.00 -83,523.26 135,400.00
16,800.00 16,800.00 16,800.00 0.00 16,800.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
16,800.00 16,800.00 16,800.00 0.00 16,800.00
657.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 -543.00 10,100.00
1,200.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 0.00 2,000.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1,735.00 6,100.00 6,100.00 -4,365.00 6,240.00
15,130.00 17,160.00 17,160.00 -2,030.00 0.00

KT - 2026.003

KT - 2026.002
Well Scope

KT - 2026.006

EnoScientific

EnoScientific / Signal Fire

$5K every other year (paying in FY25)

USGS

LRE- 2026.3
LRE- 2026.1

Presley/Eng Austin

Page 4 of 7



53315 -
53317 - Management Tool Sustainment

IT Network Sustainment

Total 53300 - GIS Managemet/Analytics
53400 - Computer Licenses/Virus Prtctn

53450 - Computer Repairs and Supplies
53500 - Computer Software & Hardware
53550 - Copier/Scanner/Plotter

53600 - Educational Outreach/Marketing

53603
53605 -
53615 -
53620 -
53625 -
Total 53600 - Educational Outreach/Marketing

Sponsorships

Event Cost
Promotional Items
Supplies & Equipment

Curriculum

53650 - Furniture & Equipment
53700 - Legal

53701 -
53702 -
53703 -
53704 -
53705 -
53706 -

Drought Contingency Plan
Endangered Species

General (rules/accountability)
Legislative Research/Analysis
Legislative Services
GMAJ/DFC/MAG support

Total 53700 - Legal
53720 - Office Supplies
53730 - Permit Reviews

53731 -
53732 -

Geoscience

Legal Evaluation

Total 53730 - Permit Reviews

DRAFT

Oct ‘24 F.Y_25 FY25 $ Over FY26
s, e el g Fpoed
s
6,500.00 7.,800.00 7,800.00 -1,300.00 7.800.00 Eng. Austin
3,751.75 3,000.00 5,000.00 -1,248.25 2,200.00 LRE -2026.2
28,973.75 36,460.00 38,460.00 -9,486.25 28,340.00
2,002.78 2,500.00 2,500.00 -497.22 3,364.00 Eng. Austin
0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 2,500.00 Eng. Austin
1,372.34 5,000.00 5,000.00 -3,627.66 5,000.00 Eng. Austin
4,750.38 6,350.00 6,350.00 -1,599.62 6,350.00
7,200.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 -800.00 8,000.00
3,833.46 8,000.00 8,000.00 -4,166.54 8,000.00
1,339.05 5,000.00 5,000.00 -3,660.95 3,500.00
0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 1,500.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
12,372.51 23,500.00 23,500.00 -11,127.49 21,000.00
478.87 2,500.00 2,500.00 -2,021.13 2,500.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 2,500.00
3,998.50 5,000.00 5,000.00 -1,001.50 10,000.00
4,117.65 5,000.00 5,000.00 -882.35 5,000.00
34,999.98 35,000.00 35,000.00 -0.02 0.00 Non-Legislative year
0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 5,000.00
43,116.13 52,500.00 52,500.00 -9,383.87 22,500.00
1,909.27 5,400.00 5,400.00 -3,490.73 5,400.00
13,532.50 25,000.00 25,000.00 -11,467.50 25,000.00 KT - 2026.01
22,949.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 -2,051.00 25,000.00 Lloyd Gosselink
36,481.50 50,000.00 50,000.00 -13,518.50 50,000.00

Page 5of 7



53740 -
53750 -
53760 -
53780 -
63785 -
53790 -

Postage

Printing

Reserve for Uncollected Taxes
Subscriptions

Mobile Classroom Expense

Vehicle Expense

Total 53000 - Operating Expenses
54000 - Facility Costs

54100

« Insurance

54101 - Liability

54102 - Property

54103 - Surety Bonds

54104 - Worker's Comp

54105 - Liability - Vehicle

54106 - Liability - Cyber Security

Total 54100 - Insurance

54200 -
54300 -
54400 -
54500 -
54600 -

Building Repairs/Maintenance
Janitorial Service

Janitorial Supplies

Lawn Maintenance/Service

Security

Total 54000 - Facility Costs
55000 - Utilities

55200
55300
55400
55500

- Electricity

- Internet

* Phone

- Water/Garbage

Total 55000 - Utilities

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

DRAFT

Oct 24 FY25 FY25 $ Over FY26
thrtx Original Amended Budget Proposed NOTES
July '25 Budget Budget Budget
1,793.86 3,450.00 3,450.00 -1,656.14 3,450.00
411.83 2,500.00 2,500.00 -2,088.17 2,500.00
0.00 27,500.00 27,500.00 -27,500.00 27,500.00
1,888.97 1,500.00 1,938.72 -49.75 2,100.00
0.00 2,000.00 1,661.28 -1,561.28 1,500.00
3,951.32 6,720.00 6,720.00 -2,768.68 6,720.00
235,821.03  417,885.00  420,535.00 -184,713.97 358,054.00
2,478.42 2,530.00 2,530.00 -51.58 2,530.00
2,942.94 3,003.00 3,003.00 -60.06 3,003.00
200.00 1,300.00 1,300.00 -1,100.00 1,300.00
1,035.00 1,050.00 1,050.00 -15.00 1,050.00
2,405.90 2,455.00 2,455.00 -49.10 2,455.00
980.00 1,250.00 1,250.00 -270.00 1,250.00
10,042.26 11,588.00 11,588.00 -1,545.74 11,588.00
3,922.68 10,000.00 9,163.00 -5,240.32 10,000.00
6,070.00 7,300.00 7,300.00 -1,230.00 7,300.00
640.52 2,000.00 2,000.00 -1,359.48 2,000.00
3,612.00 3,000.00 3,837.00 -225.00 5,000.00 additional irrigation/mowing
604.45 660.00 660.00 -55.55 660.00 Rapid Fire (Progressive)
24,891.91 34,548.00 34,548.00 -9,656.09 36,548.00
3,343.02 3,600.00 3,600.00 -256.98 4,000.00
1,656.70 1,900.00 1,900.00 -243.30 2,100.00
2,779.22 3,000.00 3,000.00 -220.78 3,000.00
2,711.37 2,800.00 2,800.00 -88.63 3,000.00
10,490.31 11,300.00 11,300.00 -809.69 12,100.00
689,219.12  984,920.00  984,920.00 -295,700.88 983,594.00
189,350.58  -44,500.00  -44,500.00 233,850.58 0.00

Page 6 of 7



DRAFT

Oct ‘24 FY25 FY25 $ Over FY26
thru Original Amended Budget Proposed NOTES
July '25 Budget Budget 9 Budget
L\ & _ ]
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
61000 - Reserve Funds-Special Projects 0.00 0.00 10,500.00 -10,500.00 0.00
61001 - Reserve Funds-CGMM Dashboard 0.00 44,500.00 44,500.00 -44,500.00 0.00
61002 - Reserve Funds-IT/Server Upgrade 0.00 0.00 22,321.15 -22,321.15 0.00
Total Other Income 0.00 44,500.00 77,321.15 -77,321.15 0.00
Other Expense
65201 - CTX Water Alliance Project 10,500.00 0.00 10,500.00 0.00 0.00
65202 - IT System/Server Upgrade 20,620.00 0.00 22,321.15 -1,701.15 0.00
Total Other Expense 31,120.00 0.00 32,821.15 -1,701.15 0.00
Net Other Income -31,120.00 44,500.00 44,500.00 -75,620.00 0.00

Net Income 158,230.58 0.00 0.00 168,230.58 0.00

Page 7 of 7






2025 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet
Taxing Units Other Than School Districts or Water Districts

CLEARWATER U.W.C.D.
Taxing Unit Name Phone (area code and number)
Taxing Unit’s Addves-sj-c-l& State, ZIP Code B Taxing Unit's Website Address

GENERAL INFORMATION: Tax Code Section 26.04(c) requires an officer or employee designated by the governing body to calculate the no-new-revenue (NNR) tax rate and
voter-approval tax rate for the taxing unit. These tax rates are expressed in dollars per $100 of taxable value calculated. The calculation process starts after the chief appraiser
delivers to the taxing unit the certified appraisal roll and the estimated values of properties under protest. The designated officer or employee shall certify that the officer or
employee has accurately calculated the tax rates and used values shown for the certified appraisal roll or certified estimate. The officer or employee submits the rates to the
governing body by Aug. 7 or as soon thereafter as practicable.

School districts do not use this form, but instead use Comptroller Form 50-859 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet, School District without Chapter 313 Agreements or Comptroller Form
50-884 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet, School District with Chapter 313 Agreements.

Water districts as defined under Water Code Section 49.001(1) do not use this form, but instead use Comptroller Form 50-858 Water District Voter-Approval Tax Rate Worksheet for
Low Tax Rate and Developing Districts or Comptroller Form 50-860 Developed Water District Voter-Approval Tax Rate Worksheet.

The Comptroller’s office provides this worksheet to assist taxing units in determining tax rates. The information provided in this worksheet is offered as technical assistance and not
legal advice. Taxing units should consult legal counsel for interpretations of law regarding tax rate preparation and adoption.

SECTION 1: No-New-Revenue Tax Rate

The NNR tax rate enables the public to evaluate the relationship between taxes for the prior year and for the current year based on a tax rate that would produce the same amount
of taxes (no new taxes) if applied to the same properties that are taxed in both years. When appraisal values increase, the NNR tax rate should decrease.

The NNR tax rate for a county is the sum of the NNR tax rates calculated for each type of tax the county levies.

While uncommon, it is possible for a taxing unit to provide an exemption for only maintenance and operations taxes. In this case, the taxing unit will need to calculate the NNR tax
rate separately for the maintenance and operations tax and the debt tax, then add the two components together,

1. | Prior year total taxable value. Enter the amount of the prior year taxable value on the prior year tax roli today. Include any adjustments since last
year’s certification; exclude Tax Code Section 25.25(d) one-fourth and one-third over-appraisal corrections from these adjustments. Exclude any
property value subject to an appeal under Chapter 42 as of July 25 (will add undisputed value in Line 6). This total includes the taxable value of
homesteads with tax ceilings (will deduct in Line 2) and the captured value for tax increment financing (adjustment is made by deducting TIF taxes,
as reflected in Line 17).! ¢ 37,229,899,932

,i S
2. | Prior year tax ceilings. Counties, cities and junior college districts. Enter the prior year total taxable value of homesteads with tax ceilings.

These include the homesteads of homeowners age 65 or older or disabled. Other taxing units enter 0. if your taxing unit adopted the tax ceiling

.! provision last year or a prior year for homeowners age 65 or older or disabled, use this step.2 |50
- - R — — 4
|
3. | Preliminary prior year adjusted taxable value. Subtract Line 2 from Line 1. 1 § 37,229,899,932
i 4. | Prior year total adopted tax rate. E ¢ 0.002230 /$100
— — . = . !. — — —
[ |
{5 Prior year taxable value lost because court appeals of ARB dedsions reduced the prior year's appraised value. |
l A. Originalprioryear ARBvalUES:.............cceviitiiiniiniiiiniiiiiiiieriaiiiarerertieersoieenssoes § 37,182,137 '
B. Prior year values resulting from final court dedsions:...................ooooiiiiiiiiiiiini i, - § 34,688,191 '
C. Prior year value loss. Subtract B from A2 ‘ § 2.493,946
6. | Prior year taxable value subject to an appeal under Chapter 42, as of July 25.
A. PrioryearARBcertifledvalue: .............coooiiiiiiiiii e § 945.448,326
B. Prioryeardisputed VAIUE:................ocuuvrnniiineeireiieeeinieie i ettt eaeaeiiernaaaerans - 75,635,866
C. Prior year undisputed value. Subtract B from A. ¢ ¢ 869,812,460
7. | Prior year Chapter 42 related adjusted values. Add Line 5C and Line 6C. | ¢ 872,306,406
—_— = N SOV P EEmCC—— ST ey — - = 4 -
! Tex. Tax Code §26.012(14)
?Tex. Tax Code §26.012(14)
? Tex. Tax Code §26.012(13)
“Tex. Tax Code §26.012(13)
Forrﬁ deﬁeluoped by: Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts, Property Tax Assistance Division For additional copies, visit: comptroller.texas.gov/taxes/property-tax

50-856 * 3-25/12



2025 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet - Taxing Units Other Than School Districts or Water Districts

Form 50-856

8. | Prior year taxable value, adjusted for actual and potential court-ordered adjustments. Add Line 3 and Line 7.
| - —_ = — 2 i e e
9. | Prior year taxable value of property in territory the taxing unit deannexed after Jan, 1, 2024. Enter the prior year value of property in
deannexed teritory. *
10. | Prior year taxable value lost because property first qualified for an exemption in the current year. If the taxing unit increased an original
exemption, use the difference between the original exempted amount and the increased exempted amount. Do not include value lost due to
i freeport, goods-in-transit, temporary disaster exemptions. Note that lowering the amount or percentage of an existing exemption in the current |
: year does not create a new exemption or reduce taxable value.
|| A. Absolute exemptions. Use prior year market Value: ................ccveeereeeeereeserseeereeesennns ¢ 15,005,474
. |
' B. Partial exemptions. Current year exemption amount or current year percentage exemption
tIMes PHIOTYear Value: .. ...oeiii it e e e e et e e e +4 264,342,436
: C. Valueloss.Add Aand B.¢

11. | Prior year taxable value lost because property first qualified for agricultural appraisal (1-d or 1-d-1), timber appraisal, recreational/
scenic appraisal or public access airport special appraisal in the current year. Use only properties that qualified for the first time in the
current year; do not use properties that qualified in the prior year.

A. Prioryearmarket valUue:..............oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i e et eas $0
B. Current year productivity or special appraisedvalue:.............c..cccovvivrinviriiiierieinnenenenes -$0
C. Value loss. Subtract B from A.”
12. | Total adjustments for lost value. Add Lines 9, 10C and 11C.
| 13. | Prior year captured value of property in a TIF. Enter the total value of the prior year captured appraised value of property taxable by a tax-
[ ing unit in a tax increment financing zone for which the prior year taxes were deposited into the tax increment fund. ¢ If the taxing unit has no
5 | captured appraised value in line 18D, enter 0.
I
i 14. | Prior year total value, Subtract Line 12 and Line 13 from Line 8.
15. | Adjusted prior year total levy. Multiply Line 4 by Line 14 and divide by $100.
|
: 16. | Taxes refunded for years preceding the prior tax year. Enter the amount of taxes refunded by the taxing unit for tax years preceding the
| prior tax year. Types of refunds include court decisions, Tax Code Section 25.25(b) and (c) corrections and Tax Code Section 31.11 payment
i errors. Do not include refunds for the prior tax year. This line applies only to tax years preceding the prior tax year. *
A [l 1 LA | e R S .
17, Adjusted prior year levy with refunds and TIF adjustment. Add Lines 15 and 16.

18. | Total current year taxable value on the current year certified appraisal roll today. This value includes only certified values or certified esti-
mate of values and includes the total taxable value of homesteads with tax ceilings (will deduct in Line 20). These homesteads include home-
owners age 65 or older or disabled. "

f A, Cartifled VAMUES:. .........ccvuniniineteieieritet et eran et eer e et en et s ere e e et eeie i eaans ¢ 38,822,290,561
|

! B. Counties: Include railroad rolling stock values certified by the Comptroller's office: ..........ccoovvviinen +$0

[ 1

| | €. Pollution control and energy storage system exemption: Deduct the value of property exempted

| for the current tax year for the first time as pollution control or energy storage system property:........... -s 0

| D. Taxincrement financing: Deduct the current year captured appraised value of property taxable by a taxing

! unit in a tax increment financing zone for which the current year taxes will be deposited into the tax increment

[ fund. Do not include any new property value that will be included in Line 23 below. 2 .................... -s0

|

i E. Total current year value. Add A and B, then subtract Cand D.

L ih DSt == — e = = - S—— —- — —
$ Tex. Tax Code §26.012(15)

S Tex. Tax Code §26.012(15)

? Tex. Tax Code §26.012(15)

* Tex. Tax Code §26.03(c)

* Tex. Tax Code §26.012(13)

@ Tex. Tax Code §26.012(13)

" Tex. Tax Code §26.012, 26.04(c-2)

" Tex, Tax Code §26.03(c)

For additional copies, visit: comptroller.texas.gov/taxes/property-tax

i
T
|

| ¢.38.822,200,561

¢ 38,102,206,338

s 0

§ 279,347,910

s 0

§ 279,347,910

|$0

| ¢ 37,822,858,428

§ 843,449

| 5 7193

| |
i ¢ 850,642 ‘

|
|

Page 2



2025 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet - Taxing Units Other Than Schoo! Districts or Water Districts Form 50-856

19. | Total vafue of properties under protest or not included on certified appraisal roll,

A.  Current year taxable value of properties under protest. The chief appraiser certifies a list of properties still |
under ARB protest. The list shows the appraisal district’s value and the taxpayer’s claimed value, if any,
or an estimate of the value if the taxpayer wins. For each of the properties under protest, use the lowest |
of these values. Enter the total value under protest. ™. ...............cooueuneeneineeniernraneennnennnns $ 2,318,699,035 |

B.  Current year value of properties not under protest or included on certified appraisal roll. The chief
appraiser gives taxing units a list of those taxable properties that the chief appraiser knows about but
are not included in the appraisal roll certification. These properties also are not on the list of properties
that are still under protest. On this list of properties, the chief appraiser includes the market value, |
appraised value and exemptions for the preceding year and a reasonable estimate of the market value,

appraised value and exemptions for the current year. Use the lower market, appraised or taxable value
(as appropriate). Enter the total value of property not on the certifiedroll. .............cvvveriiviinnn, +$0 .
C. Total value under protest or not certified. Add A and B. ! ¢ 2,318,699,035
== e —— - == = = = — = = + L —e
20. | Current year tax ceilings. Counties, cities and junior colleges enter current year total taxable value of homesteads with tax ceilings. These
include the homesteads of homeowners age 65 or older or disabled. Other taxing units enter 0. If your taxing unit adopted the tax ceiling pro- |
vision in the prior year or a previous year for homeowners age 65 or older or disabled, use this step.' ! 50
21. | Current year total taxable value. Add Lines 18E and 19C. Subtract Line 20. ¥ 5 § 41,140,989,596
9% (N S — — I e e
22. | Total current year taxable value of properties in tervitory annexed after Jan. 1, of the prior year. Include both real and personal property. | [
Enter the current year value of property in territory annexed. " | s 0 .
23. | Total curvent year taxable value of new improvements and new personal property located in new improvements. New means the |
item was not on the appraisal roll in the prior year. An improvement is a building, structure, fixture or fence erected on or affixed to land. New
| additions to existing improvements may be included if the appraised value can be determined. New personal property in a new improvement
| must have been brought into the taxing unit after Jan. 1, of the prior year and be located in a new improvement. New improvements do include
[ property on which a tax abatement agreement has expired for the current year. ¥ § 1,209,864,608
:' 24. | Total adjustments to the current year taxable value. Add Lines 22 and 23. § 1,209,864,608 ;
} - E— — s = . = | - i
[ 25. | Adjusted current year taxable value. Subtract Line 24 from Line 21. § 39,931,124,988
B : : . { |
[ |
[ 26. | Current year NNR tax rate. Divide Line 17 by Line 25 and multiply by $100.% § 0.002130 /6100 |
| - - e
| 27. | COUNTIES ONLY. Add together the NNR tax rates for each type of tax the county levies. The total is the current year county NNR tax rate. | ¢ 0.000000 /5100 |
T 1 _ ) N—— T s e e e |

SECTION 2:Voter-Approval Tax Rate

The voter-approval tax rate is the highest tax rate that a taxing unit may adopt without holding an election to seek voter approval of the rate. The voter-approval tax rate is split
into two separate rates:

1. Maintenance and Operations (M&0) Tax Rate: The M&O portion is the tax rate that is needed to raise the same amount of taxes that the taxing unit levied in the prior year
plus the applicable percentage allowed by law. This rate accounts for such things as salaries, utilities and day-to-day operations.

2. Debt Rate: The debt rate includes the debt service necessary to pay the taxing unit’s debt payments in the coming year. This rate accounts for principal and interest on bonds
and other debt secured by property tax revenue.

The voter-approval tax rate for a county is the sum of the voter-approval tax rates calculated for each type of tax the county levies. In most cases the voter-approval tax rate
exceeds the no-new-revenue tax rate, but occasionally decreases in a taxing unit’s debt service will cause the NNR tax rate to be higher than the voter-approval tax rate.

Prior year M&O tax rate. Enter the prior year M&O tax rate. S 0.002230 !smo

29, | Prior year taxable value, adjusted for actual and potential court-ordered adjustments. Enter the amount in Line 8 of the No-New-Revenue |
Tax Rate Worksheet. ‘ ¢ 38,102,206,338

1 Tex. Tax Code §26.01(c) and (d)
" Tex. Tax Code §26.01(c)

** Tex. Tax Code §26.01(d)

" Yex. Yax Code §26.012(6)(B)

" Tex. Tax Code §26.012(6)

" Tex. Tax Code §26.012(17)

" Tex. Tax Code §26.012(17)

® Tex. Tax Code §26.04(c)

¥ Tex. Tax Code §26.04(d)

For additional copies, visit: comptroller.texas.gov/taxes/property-tax Page 3



2025 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet — Taxing Units Other Than School Districts or Water Districts

Form 50-856

30. | Total prior year M&O levy. Multiply Line 28 by Line 29 and divide by $100

|
| 31. | Adjusted prior year levy for calculating NNR M&O rate.

A.  M&O taxes refunded for years preceding the prior tax year. Enter the amount of M&O taxes
refunded in the preceding year for taxes before that year. Types of refunds include court decisions,
Tax Code Section 25.25(b) and (c) corrections and Tax Code Section 31.11 payment errors. Do not
include refunds for tax year 2024. This line applies only to tax years preceding the prior tax year.............. +$ 7,135

| B. Prioryear taxes in TIF. Enter the amount of taxes paid into the tax increment fund for a reinvestment
| zone as agreed by the taxing unit. If the taxing unit has no current year captured appraised value in 0

Line 18D, @NEET 0.. ...t itieetieetieetteeeereraaseeaesecnnssssereensnneeseosansecassssnnsasnsesennnnn -$

| €. Prioryear transferred function. If discontinuing all of a department, function or activity and
transferring it to another taxing unit by written contract, enter the amount spent by the taxing

unit discontinuing the function in the 12 months preceding the month of this calculation. If the

taxing unit did not operate this function for this 12-month period, use the amount spent in the last

full fiscal year in which the taxing unit operated the function. The taxing unit discontinuing the function

will subtract this amount in D below. The taxing unit receiving the function will add this amount in 0

D below. Other taxing UNItS @NEr 0. ......ouvivetiieniirnietiiieeaaterieriieeesrieraanteseeianeeanns +/-$
| D. Prior year M&O levy adjustments. Subtract B from A. For taxing unit with C, subtract if 7.135
| discontinuing function and add if receiving function.............ooiiiiiiiiiiieiiii i $

— B AddLine30to31D. - E— N S—— I B -
32. | Adjusted current year taxable value, Enter the amount in Line 25 of the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate Worksheet.

| 33. | Current year NNR M&O rate (unadjusted). Divide Line 31E by Line 32 and multiply by $100.

[ 34. | Rate adjustment for state criminal justice mandate. »

| A. Current year state criminal justice mandate. Enter the amount spent by a county in the previous 12 months
| | providing for the maintenance and operation cost of keeping inmates in county-paid facilities after they
i have been sentenced. Do not include any state reimbursement received by the county for the same purpose.  $ 0

| B.  Prior year state criminal justice mandate. Enter the amount spent by a county in the 12 months prior to
! the previous 12 months providing for the maintenance and operation cost of keeping inmates in
|

county-paid facilities after they have been sentenced. Do not include any state reimbursement received
by the county for the same purpose. Enter zero if this is the first time the mandate applies. ................ -0

D.  Enter the rate calculated in C. If not applicable, enter 0.

35

Rate adjustment for indigent health care expenditures.

A. Currentyear indigent health care expenditures. Enter the amount paid by a taxing unit providing for the
maintenance and operation cost of providing indigent health care for the period beginning on

i §0

[ B. Prioryearindigent health care expenditures. Enter the amount paid by a taxing unit providing for
the maintenance and operation cost of providing indigent health care for the period beginning

‘ on July 1, 2023 and ending on June 30, 2024, less any state assistance received

|

|

fOr the SAME PUIPOSE.. . . vttt ittt ieitttietinattsseraissiasessssannannanncassesesasnonnensenes -30

l $100
__D.  Entertherate calculated in C. if not applicable,enterd. .

Z [Reserved for expansion}
 Tex. Tax Code §26.044
M Tex. Tax Code §26.0441

For additional copies, visit: comptrolier.texas.gov/taxes/property-tax

€.  Subtract B from A and divide by Line 32 and multiply by $100...........cccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin $ 0.000000 /$100

July 1, of the prior tax year and ending on June 30, of the current tax year, less any state assistance received for the same purpose.

C.  Subtract B from A and divide by Line 32 and multiply by $100..........cccovvvriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnennn, § 0000000

¢ 856,814

¢ 39,931,124,988

| §0002145  s100

§ 0.000000 /00

|
| § 0000000 /6100

Page 4



2025 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet - Taxing Units Other Than School Districts or Water Districts

| 37,

i 38.

39.

a. |

A. Cumentyear indigent defense compensation expenditures. Enter the amount paid by a county to provide
appointed counsel for indigent individuals and fund the operations of a public defender’s office under
Article 26.044, Code of Criminal Procedure for the period beginning on July 1, of the prior tax year and ending on

June 30,0f the current tax year, less any state grants received by the county for the same purpose.......... $0

Rate adjustment for county Indigent defense compensation.

E. Enterthe lesser of Cand D. If not applicable, enter 0.

Form 50-856

B.  Prioryear indigent defense compensation expenditures. Enter the amount paid by a county to provide
appointed counsel for indigent individuals and fund the operations of a public defender’s office under
Article 26.044, Code of Criminal Procedure for the period beginning on July 1, 2023 and ending on

June 30, 2024, less any state grants received by the county for the same purpose.......................... $0 |
C.  Subtract B from A and divide by Line 32 and multiply by $100........cooiinniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieniienns ¢ 0.000000 /5100 |
D. Muttiply B by 0.05 and divide by Line 32 and multiply by $100.............ueneeniiaeeieneeeiiereeen. § 0.000000 /5100

A.  Current year eligible county hospital expenditures. Enter the amount paid by the county or municipality |

E.  Enterthe lesser of Cand D, if applicable. If not applicable, enter 0.

to maintain and operate an eligible county hospital for the period beginning on July 1, of the prior tax year and
ending on June 30, of the CUMENt taX Year. .. ......oviiiiiiiriietiettiaitiiiteetrereerneannnsannerens $s0 |

B. Prioryear eligible county hospital expenditures. Enter the amount paid by the county or municipality
to maintain and operate an eligible county hospital for the period beginning on July 1, 2022 and |

ending 0N JUNE 30,2023, ..e\uuuinreniterineeetneetiaaeraaeett e e e e et e e e e e et eeat e rraaaas s :
€. Subtract B from A and divide by Line 32 and multiply by $100...........ouiirerririniniereieienienenens $ 0.000000 /5100 |
D.  Multiply B by 0.08 and divide by Line 32 and multiply by $100.................ccovvvniiininniiiineiannes § 0.000000 /5100

| §.0.000000 /100

Rate adjustment for defunding municipality. This adjustment only applies to a municipality that is considered to be a defunding municipal- |
ity for the current tax year under Chapter 109, Local Government Code. Chapter 109, Local Government Code only applies to municipalities with |
a population of more than 250,000 and includes a written determination by the Office of the Governor. See Tax Code Section 26.0444 for more

| $0000000 /5100 {

information.
| A, Amount appropriated for public safety in the prior year. Enter the amount of money appropriated for public [
! safety in the budget adopted by the municipality for the preceding fiscal year............................ $ 0
B. Expenditures for public safety in the prior year. Enter the amount of money spent by the municipality for publlc [
safety during the preceding fiscal year..............coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt e $0 |
C.  Subtract B from A and divide by Line 32 and multiply by $100 ............cconeiiiiinininininineereninnens ¢ 0.000000 /$100 |
D.  Enter the rate calculated in C. If not applicable, enter 0. 4 0.000000 /5100

of sales tax spent

 Tex. Tax Code §26.0442
 Tex, Tax Code §26.0443

€.  AddLine 408 to Line 39.

| Adjusted current year NNR M&O rate. Add Lines 33, 34D, 35D, 36E, and 37E. Subtract Line 38D.

Adjustment for prior year sales tax specifically to reduce property taxes. Cities, counties and hospital districts that collected and spent
additional sales tax on M&O expenses in the prior year should complete this line. These entities will deduct the sales tax gain rate for the current |
year in Section 3. Other taxing units, enter zero.

B.  Divide Line 40A by Line 32 and multiply by $100 .........euviuniieenen et ee e e eneeeaenaens ¢ 0.000000 /$100

Current year voter-approval M&O rate. Enter the rate as calculated by the appropriate scenario below.
Special Taxing Unit. If the taxing unit qualifies as a special taxing unit, multiply Line 40C by 1.08.

Other Taxing Unit. If the taxing unit does not qualify as a special taxing unit, multiply Line 40C by 1.035.

§ 0002145 /5100

A.  Enterthe amount of additional sales tax collected and spent on M&O expenses in the prior year, if any. |
Counties must exclude any amount that was spent for economic development grants from the amount
...................................................................................... $0

¢ 0.002220 /$100

§ 0.002145 /6100 |

For additional copies, visit: comptroller.texas.gov/taxes/property-tax Page 5



2025 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet ~ Taxing Units Other Than School Districts or Water Districts

Form 50-856

pat.

D41,

!  edinan area declared a disaster area and at least one person is granted an exemption under Tax Code Section 11.35 for property located in the
taxing unit, the governing body may direct the person calculating the voter-approval tax rate to calculate in the manner provided for a special

[ taxing unit. The taxing unit shall continue to calculate the voter-approval tax rate in this manner until the earlier of

| 1) the first year in which total taxable value on the certified appraisal roll exceeds the total taxable value of

the tax year in which the disaster occurred, or

2) the third tax year after the tax year in which the disaster occurred

-
! If the taxing unit qualifies under this scenario, multiply Line 40C by 1.08. ’ if the taxing unit does not qualify, do not complete
{

Disaster Line 41 (D41): Current year voter-approval M&O rate for taxing unit affected by disaster declaration. If the taxing unit is locat-

Disaster Line 41 (Line D41). |3 /6100 |
42, | Total current year debt to be paid with property taxes and additional sales tax revenue. Debt means the interest and principal that will | [
| be paid on debts that: .
| (1) are paid by property taxes, | :
(2) are secured by property taxes, | |
(3) are scheduled for payment over a period longer than one year, and '
(4) are not classified in the taxing unit’s budget as M&O expenses. |
A. Debt also includes contractual payments to other taxing units that have incurred debts on behalf of this taxing unit, if those debts |
meet the four conditions above. Include only amounts that will be paid from property tax revenue. Do not include appraisal district
| budget payments. If the governing body of a taxing unit authorized or agreed to authorize a bond, warrant, certificate of obligation, or |
| other evidence of indebtedness on or after Sept. 1, 2021, verify if it meets the amended definition of debt before including it here. 2
: ENter debt 8MOUNE .. ... eetn ettt et et e e et ettt e ettt ea et b e e e e et e e een e e een et e een e eeaas $0 '
| | B. Subtract unencumbered fund amount used to reduce totaldebt. ............coceeiiiiiiiiiiii -50 ? [
5 | |
i ! C. Subtract certified amount spent from sales tax to reduce debt (enter zeroifnone) .................... -0 [
|| D. Subtract amount paid from Other TESOUITES . ... ...\ ivinenineiniteeeesirenenieinerearencisieeeasnes -390 ?
| E. Adjusted debt. Subtract B, C and D from A. 50
43. | Certified prior year excess debt collections. Enter the amount certified by the collector. ® 50 [
44. | Adjusted current year debt. Subtract Line 43 from Line 42E. s 0 _
| i 1
a5, | Current year anticipated collection rate.
[ | A, Enterthe current year anticipated collection rate certified by the collector. ®............c.ccovviivinieinnn, 100.00 %
! i
[ | B. Entertheprioryearactual COIECtION FAte... . .....ueevuuerrenerenrenerterresrenarsnenssesssneesnenras 0.00 % |
. | |
' C. Enterthe 2023 actual COllECiON FAte. ..........ouiuieitiiieeieiie et et et eaierateeieeeasananeaatrnennes 0.00 %
|
i D. Enterthe 2022 actual colleCtion fate. ... ...iuvueeeirereninieneereeiaererenereereneassnserenenenenens 0.00 % |
! | E.Iftheanticipated collection rate in A is lower than actual collection rates in B, C and D, enter the lowest I
| collection rate from B, C and D. If the anticipated rate in A is higher than at least one of the rates in the [
| prior three years, enter the rate from A. Note that the rate can be greater than 100%. *' | 100.00 %
| ! |
f—t SRR 1 —= ]
| 46. | Current year debt adjusted for collections. Divide Line 44 by Line 45E. s 0

47. | Current year total taxable value. Enter the amount on Line 21 of the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate Worksheet.

48.

49.

Current year debt rate. Divide Line 46 by Line 47 and multiply by $100.

Current year voter-approval M&O rate plus current year debt rate. Add Lines 41 and 48.

D49.| Disaster Line 49 (D49): Current year voter-approval tax rate for taxing unit affected by disaster declaration. Complete this line if the
taxing unit calculated the voter-approval tax rate in the manner provided for a special taxing unit on Line D41.

Add Line D41 and 48.

¥ Tex. Tax Code §26.042(a)

# Yex. Tax Code §26.012(7)

® Tex. Tax Code §26.012(10) and 26.04(b)
* Tex. Tax Code §26.04(b)

¥ Tex. Tax Code §§26.04(h), (h-1) and (h-2)

For additional copies, visit: comptroller.texas.gov/taxes/property-tax

| ¢ 41,140,989,506

§ 0.000000 /5100

§ 0002220 00

Page 6



2025 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet — Taxing Units Other Than School Districts or Water Districts ' . Form 50:856

50. | COUNTIES ONLY. Add together the voter-approval tax rates for each type of tax the county levies. The total is the current year county voter-approv- | E
al tax rate. l $ 0.000000 /5100
L m—

SECTION 3: NNR Tax Rate and Voter-Approval Tax Rate Adjustments for Additional Sales Tax to Reduce Property Taxes

Citles, counties and hospital districts may levy a sales tax specifically to reduce property taxes. Local voters by election must approve imposing or abolishing the additional sales
tax. If approved, the taxing unit must reduce its NNR and voter-approval tax rates to offset the expected sales tax revenue.

This section should only be completed by a county, city or hospital district that is required to adjust its NNR tax rate and/or voter-approval tax rate because it adopted the
additional sales tax.

51. | Taxable Sales. For taxing units that adopted the sales tax in November of the prior tax year or May of the current tax year, enter the
Comptroller’s estimate of taxable sales for the previous four quarters. 2 Estimates of taxable sales may be obtained through the Comptroller’s
Allocation Historical Summary webpage.

Taxing units that adopted the sales tax before November of the prior year, enter 0.

§2. | Estimated sales tax revenue. Counties exclude any amount that is or will be spent for economic development grants from the amount of esti- |
mated sales tax revenue. 3

Taxing units that adopted the sales tax in November of the prior tax year or in May of the current tax year. Multiply the amount on |

Line 51 by the sales tax rate (.01, .005 or .0025, as applicable) and muitiply the result by .95.% |

- or -
|
|
|
[
|
|

Taxing units that adopted the sales tax before November of the prior year. Enter the sales tax revenue for the previous four quarters.
Do not multiply by .95.

| 53. | Current year total taxable value. Enter the amount from Line 21 of the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate Worksheet.

54. | Sales tax adjustment rate. Divide Line 52 by Line 53 and multiply by $100. s /6100 |

| 55. | Current year NNR tax rate, unadjusted for sales tax.* Enter the rate from Line 26 or 27, as applicable, on the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate
| Worksheet.

| 56. | Current year NNR tax rate, adjusted for sales tax. ;

‘ Taxing units that adopted the sales tax in November the prior tax year or in May of the current tax year. Subtract Line 54 from Line |
55. Skip to Line 57 if you

i adopted the additional sales tax before November of the prior tax year.

57. | Current year voter-approval tax rate, unadjusted for sales tax.* Enter the rate from Line 49, Line D49 (disaster) or Line 50 (counties) as
| applicable, of the Voter-Approval Tax Rate Worksheet.
| . )

‘ §8. | Current year voter-approval tax rate, adjusted for sales tax. Subtract Line 54 from Line 57.

SECTION 4: Voter-Approval Tax Rate Adjustment for Pollution Control

A taxing unit may raise its rate for M&O funds used to pay for a facility, device or method for the control of air, water or land pollution. This includes any land, structure, building,
Installation, excavation, machinery, equipment or device that is used, constructed, acquired or installed wholly or partly to meet or exceed pollution control requirements. The
taxing unit's expenses are those necessary to meet the requirements of a permit issued by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (FCEQ). The taxing unit must provide
the tax assessor with a copy of the TCEQ letter of determination that states the portion of the cost of the installation for pollution control.

This section should only be completed by a taxing unit that uses M&O funds to pay for a facility, device or method for the contro! of alr, water or land pollution.

59. | Certified expenses from the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ). Enter the amount certified in the determination letter
from TCEQ. ¥ The taxing unit shall provide its tax assessor-collector with a copy of the letter. % s

60. | Current year total taxable value. Enter the amount from Line 21 of the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate Worksheet. $

61. | Additional rate for pollution control. Divide Line 59 by Line 60 and multiply by $100. s /$100

" Tex. Tax Code §26.041(d)
¥ Tex. Tax Code §26.041()
3 Tex. Tax Code §26.041(d)
* Tex. Tax Code §26.04(c)
* Tex. Tax Code §26.04(c)
¥ Tex. Tax Code §26.045(d)
% Tex. Tax Code §26.045())

For additional copies, visit: coniptrolIer.texas.gov/takes/property-tax Page 7



2025 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet — Taxing Units Other Than Schoo! Districts or Water Districts Form 50-856

Current year voter-approval tax rate, adjusted for poflution control. Add Line 61 to one of the following lines (as applicable): Line 49, Line
D49 (disaster), Line 50 (counties) or Line 58 (taxing units with the additional sales tax).

| $ /5100 |

SECTION 5: Voter-Approval Tax Rate Adjustment for Unused Increment Rate

The unused increment rate is the rate equal to the sum of the prior 3 years Foregone Revenue Amounts divided by the current taxable value. ** The Foregone Revenue Amount for each
year is equal to that year's adopted tax rate subtracted from that year's voter-approval tax rate adjusted to remove the unused increment rate multiplied by that year's current total
value. ®|

The difference between the adopted tax rate and adjusted voter-approval tax rate is considered zero in the following scenarios:

- ataxyear in which a taxing unit affected by a disaster declaration calculates the tax rate under Tax Code Section 26.042; 4
- ataxyear in which the municipality is a defunding municipality, as defined by Tax Code Section 26.0501(a); ? or

«  after Jan. 1, 2022, a tax year in which the comptroller determines that the county implemented a budget reduction or reallocation described by Local Government Code
Section 120.002(a) without the required voter approval.

This section should only be completed by a taxing unit that does not meet the definition of a special taxing unit.

|
63. | Year 3 Foregone Revenue Amount. Subtract the 2024 unused increment rate and 2024 actual tax rate from the 2024 voter-

approval tax rate. Multiply the resuit by the 2024 current total value i
! A VOLEr-approval tax Fate (LINE 68). .........uveurssinenenrnenstninsesenrneneneenesseesetneenensserassnesssensrnssnssnsnsrerssses $ 0002629 /5100
| B. Unused increment rate (LN 67) .......couiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiit ittt s etaaieeiaattettteteataneseananetaneesseeraeassosanios $ 0.000205 /5100
LI -1+ 1 T W P | $ 0.002424 /8100
L o [T T g PPN ' $_0.002230 /$100
L T Y o 1 < PP | ¢ 0.000194 /$100 |
F. 2024 Total Taxable Value (LIN@ 60) .. ... ..ueetttieeenteeteeteeentteeaeteesianeetaaneesasensaenseanesesenssrenseneesesseseeesnneres | $ 38,395,489,939 |
G. Multiply E by F and divide the results by $100. If the number Is less than zero, enterzero .............cocvviiiiiiiiiiiiininennea, | $ 74487 |
A e : = s e : . ! o |
64. | Year 2 Foregone Revenue Amount. Subtract the 2023 unused increment rate and 2023 actuai tax rate from the 2023 voter- ;
approval tax rate. Multiply the result by the 2023 current total value
A, VOter-apProval taX Fate (LI 67). .. .. .uurenininineneset et er et eneen et st esean st eseatneseseseresesanseaenanenetsareneseseaasnsees $ 0.002865 /5100
B. Unused INCTEmENt 1ate (LINE 66) ..........ueueneeniereresetneesennenenenetasenstesasneneaasesesesesensinenetenssssnesrnsnesnseses | $0.000391 /5100
LT Ta g 1 - VPP | $ 0002474  /$100
D. AOPLEA TAX R ...« e ettt et ettt ean e ee et et ae ettt e e et et e ebba e e tetieesba e e e ea e et e ta e e ta e s e e een e e eenaeera e eans |$.0.002372 /500 |
E SUDETACE D fTOM C vt vvternveeeeaneeenieeeeenseeaneeesaesaseneneessssnnsantessanssnnessssesssnnsssnssnsntnsannensnsonenssnsanseruns | $.0.000102 /5100
F. 2023 Total Taxable Value (LINE 60) ......... ... iieeretiriiiiresttieetieisee s e e et eeeeb bbbt e e s e bbb e e s e e eaeeeeeeetbia e eeees | $ 35300611496 |
G. Multiply € by F and divide the results by $100. If the number is less than zero, enterzero ...............cciviiiiiiiiiieninienennns $ 36,006
65.  Year 1 Foregone Revenue Amount. Subtract the 2022 unused increment rate and 2022 actual tax rate from the 2022 voter- |
approval tax rate. Multiply the result by the 2022 current total value |
A, VOter-approval taX FAte (LINE 67). .. .. ..vvreirnerneirerseersesnserernteseerssnseneertneetesrnersernseestaerneetaneerrensennes § 0003565 /5100
B. Unused INCrement Tate (LINE 66) ..........eueeeieireearerenenteteanetassssenensassseeasseasansasasensensenserensnrnssenesensesenens §0000745 /5100 |
T LT 0 R 10 . VU §0.002820 /5100
D. AOPEE TaX RBUE . ...\ttt ettisitinentiet ettt etertetetenensaaneansesensesaatasenssessessenensenennenneesensossensnesannesenensns § 0.002708 __ /$100
. SUBETACE D fTOM ..ot ee et eeenentteeen e cn et e ete bt e et eesa et et aaes s aesaneereeeetnaennassesasnsnssssssnesnnssenseesseessnnes § 0000112 /5100
F. 2022 Total Taxable Value (LIN@ 60} ... ... veuererineineenraeeneterareseeranrernranasennnnessnneennnssnsssnesnnsessnemnsennemnns $.30,154,268,369
G. Multiply E by F and divide the results by $100. If the number is less than zero, @nter Zero ...........c.ovevrviriiiiirineieeiennennns $ 33,772
66. | Total Foregone Revenue Amount. Add Lines 63G, 64G and 65G § 144,265.00000(

67. | 2025 Unused Increment Rate. Divide Line 66 by Line 21 of the No-New-Revenue Rate Worksheet. Multiply the result by 100

$ 0.000350 /5100

68. | Total 2025 voter-approval tax rate, including the unused increment rate. Add Line 67 to one of the following lines (as applicable): Line
49, Line 50 (counties), Line 58 (taxing units with additional sales tax) or Line 62 (taxing units with pollution)

$ 0.002570 75100

 Tex. Tax Code §26.013(b)

“ Tex. Tax Code §26.013(a)(1-a), (1-b), and (2)
! Tex. Tax Code §526.04(c)(2)(A) and 26.042(a}
42 Tex. Tax Code §626.0501(a) and (c)

© Tex. Local Gov't Code §120.007(d)

“ Tex. Local Gov't Code §120.007(d)

For additional copies, visit: comptroller.texas.gov/taxes/property-tax Page 8



2025 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet ~ Taxing Units Other Than School Districts or Water Districts : Form 50-856

SECTION 6: De Minimis Rate

The de minimis rate is the rate equal to the sum of the no-new-revenue maintenance and operations rate, the rate that will raise $500,000, and the current debt rate for a taxing unit. #
This section should only be completed by a taxing unit that is a municipality of less than 30,000 or a taxing unit that does not meet the definition of a special taxing unit. *

i:o. [ Cur_rent year total taxable v_alue. Enter _tf:_e a.mour_\t on Line 21 of th?_’_l?iyethfve_nf?_Té _I_i_ate .W_orksheer. g '_S S

‘[ 71. | Rate necessary to impose $500,000 in taxes. Divide $500,000 by Line 70 and multiply by $100. $ /5100 |
| : _ : Rl . | — ]
i 72. | Current year debt rate. Enter the rate from Line 48 of the Voter-Approval Tax Rate Worksheet. s /5100 .
Eleeienie, M oS )

SECTION 7: Voter-Approval Tax Rate Adjustment for Emergency Revenue Rate

in th
prov

e tax year after the end of the disaster calculation time period detailed in Tax Code Section 26.042(a), a taxing unit that calculated its voter-approval tax rate in the manner
ided for a special taxing unit due to a disaster must calculate its emergency revenue rate and reduce its voter-approval tax rate for that year.®

Similarly, if a taxing unit adopted a tax rate that exceeded its voter-approval tax rate, calculated normally, without holding an election to respond to a disaster, as allowed by Tax
Code Section 26.042(d), in the prior year, it must also reduce its voter-approval tax rate for the current tax year.

This section will apply to a taxing unit other than a special taxing unit that:

directed the designated officer or employee to calculate the voter-approval tax rate of the taxing unit in the manner provided for a special taxing unit in the prior year; and

the current year is the first tax year in which the total taxable value of property taxable by the taxing unit as shown on the appraisal roll for the taxing unit submitted by the
assessor for the taxing unit to the governing body exceeds the total taxable value of property taxable by the taxing unit on January 1 of the tax year in which the disaster
occurred or the disaster occurred four years ago.This section will apply to a taxing unit in a disaster area that adopted a tax rate greater than its voter-approval tax rate
without holding an election in the prior year.

Note: This section does not apply if a taxing unit is continuing to calculate its voter-approval tax rate in the manner provided for a special taxing unit because it is still within the
disaster calculation time period detailed in Tax Code Section 26.042(a) because it has not met the conditions in Tax Code Section 26.042(a)(1) or (2).

~
o

. | 2024 adopted tax rate. Enter the rate in Line 4 of the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate Worksheet.

Adjusted 2024 voter-approval tax rate. Use the taxing unit’s Tax Rate Calculation Worksheets from the prior year(s) to complete this line. Ifa |
disaster occurred in 2024 and the taxing unit calculated its 2024 voter-approval tax rate using a multiplier of 1.08 on Disaster Line 41 (D41) of
the 2024 worksheet due to a disaster, complete the applicable sections or lines of Form 50-856-a, Adjusted Voter-Approval Tax Rate for Taxing

|
|
Units in Disaster Area Calculation Worksheet. I
|- or-

if a disaster occurred prior to 2024 for which the taxing unit continued to calculate its voter-approval tax rate using a multiplier of 1.08 on

Disaster Line 41 (D41) in 2024, complete form 50-856-3, Adjusted Voter-Approval Tax Rate for Taxing Units in Disaster Area Calculation Worksheet

to recalculate the voter-approval tax rate the taxing unit would have calculated in 2024 if it had generated revenue based on an adopted tax

rate using a multiplier of 1.035 in the years following the disaster. * Enter the final adjusted 2024 voter-approval tax rate from the worksheet.

|- or- |
| If the taxing unit adopted a tax rate above the 2024 voter-approval tax rate without calculating a disaster tax rate or holding an election dueto |
: a disaster, no recalculation is necessary. Enter the voter-approval tax rate from the prior year's worksheet. |

Increase in 2024 tax rate due to disaster. Subtract Line 75 from Line 74. s 5100 |

Adjusted 2024 taxable value. Enter the amount in Line 14 of the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate Worksheet. 5

Emergency revenue. Multiply Line 76 by Line 77 and divide by $100. 5

|

!

Adjusted 2024 taxable value. Enter the amount in Line 25 of the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate Worksheet. $ |
]

2 S . |

Emergency revenue rate. Divide Line 78 by Line 79 and muttiply by $100. ! s 5100

“ Tex. Tax Code §26.04(c)(2)(B)
* Tex. Tax Code §26.012(8-a)
< Tex. Tax Code §26.063(a)(1)
“ Tex. Tax Code §26.042(b)

“ Tex. Tax Code §26.042(f)

* Tex. Tax Code §§26.42(c)
 Tex. Tax Code §626.42(b)

For additional copies, visit: comptroller.texas.gov/téxes/property-tax Page 9



2025 Tax Rate Calculation Worksheet — Taxing Units Other Than School Districts or Water Districts Form 50-856

Current year voter-approval tax rate, adjusted for emergency revenue. Subtract Line 80 from one of the following lines (as applicable): [
Line 49, Line D49 (disaster), Line 50 (counties), Line 58 (taxing units with the additional sales tax), Line 62 (taxing units with pollution control)
or Line 68 (taxing units with the unused increment rate).

‘ $__ /s100

SECTION 8: Total Tax Rate

Indicate the applicable total tax rates as calculated above.

N O T EW TRV MU BN PAEE. ... .. \eiutiurintinientteteauereeieeenneeaannteesareenasnseesensessraseesensononeessnesnsosnsennesneeeneeonneons $.0.002130 75100
As applicable, enter the current year NNR tax rate from: Line 26, Line 27 (counties), or Line 56 (adjusted for sales tax).
Indicate the line number used: 26

VOl AP P OVAE X PR, . . ...\ ettt it ittt ete e et et et et e e et e e e e e eae e s eaets st e aeae et easen et s a e aaen e eneenrenaaneanans $ 0.002570 /$100
As applicable, enter the current year voter-approval tax rate from: Line 49, Line D49 (disaster), Line 50 (counties), Line 58 (adjusted for sales tax),

Line 62 (adjusted for pollution contral), Line 68 (adjusted for unused increment), or Line 81 (adjusted for emergency revenue).

Indicate the line number used: 68____

L0 LT LT L O N 3 15100
if applicable, enter the current year de minimis rate from Line 73.

SECTION 9: Taxing Unit Representative Name and Signature

Enter the name of the person preparing the tax rate as authorized by the governing body of the taxing unit. By signing below, you certify that you are the designated officer or
employee of the taxing unit and have accurately calculated the tax rates using values that are the same as the values shown in the taxing unit’s certified appraisal roll or certified
estimate of taxable value, in accordance with requirements in the Tax Code. 5

pl’lnt.
here
Printed Name of Taxing Unit Representative

here =
Taxing Unit Representative

sign » o

bate

% Tex. Tax Code §§26.04(c-2) and (d-2)

For additional copies, visit: comptroller.texas.gov/taxes/property-tax Page 10






Bell County

2025 CERTIFIED TOTALS
WCLW - CLEARWATER U.W.C.D.

As of Certification

Property Count: 183,789 ARB Approved Totals 7/22/2025 11:28:12AM
| Land Value |
Homesite: 5,425,185,603
Non Homesite: 4,279,266,558
Ag Market: 4,296,014,627
Timber Market: 2,275,656 Total Land (+) 14,002,742,444
| Improvement Value |
Homesite: 25,420,395,451
Non Homesite: 11,629,785,746  Total Improvements +) 37,050,181,197
[ Non Real Count Value |
Personal Property: 12,935 4,913,590,824
Mineral Property: 0 0
Autos: 3,779 186,569,670 Total Non Real (+) 5,100,150,494
Market Value = 56,153,074,135
[Ag Non Exempt Exempt |
Total Productivity Market: 4,297,630,862 659,421
Ag Use: 87,954,508 40,796  Productivity Loss ) 4,209,646,012
Timber Use: 30,342 0  Appraised Value = 51,943,428,123
Productivity Loss: 4,209,646,012 618,625

Homestead Cap
23.231 Cap

Assessed Value

Total Exemptions Amount
(Breakdown on Next Page)

Net Taxable

1,262,053,961
359,269,949

50,322,104,213
11,499,813,652

38,822,290,561

APPROXIMATE TOTAL LEVY = NET TAXABLE * (TAX RATE / 100)
865,737.08 = 38,822,290,561 * (0.002230 / 100)

Certified Estimate of Market Value: 56,153,074,135

Certified Estimate of Taxable Value: 38,822,290,561
Tax Increment Finance Value: 0
Tax Increment Finance Levy: 0.00

WCLW/201032 Page 1 of 14



Bell County

2025 CERTIFIED TOTALS
WCLW - CLEARWATER U.W.C.D.

As of Certification

Property Count: 183,789 ARB Approved Totals 712212025 11:28:17AM
Exemption Breakdown

L_Exﬁeal?:ﬂon Count Tocal State Total
o 1 0 0 0
CH 167 90,827,190 0 90,827,190
CHODO 3 18,932,322 0 18,932,322
DV1 1,427 0 12,241,792 12,241,792
DV1S 221 0 913,402 913,402
Dv2 1,260 0 10,479,270 10,479,270
Dv2S 143 0 932,434 932,434
DV3 2,253 0 19,594,089 19,594,089
DV3S 168 0 1,273,591 1,273,591
Dv4 11,891 0 72,744,089 72,744,089
bvas 968 0 5,670,944 5,670,944
DVCH 1 0 210,301 210,301
DVHS 15,919 0 5,309,866,679 5,309,866,679
DVHSS 953 0 221,168,390 221,168,390
EX 1 0 81,732 81,732
EX-XG 12 0 4,662,007 4,662,007
EX-Xi 37 0 44,732,671 44,732,671
EX-XJ 106 0 88,609,707 88,609,707
EX-XL 82 0 34,767,450 34,767,450
EX-XO 2 0 6,250 6,250
EX-XR 176 0 65,379,874 65,379,874
EX-XV 9,306 0 4,983,203,447 4,983,203,447
EX-XV (Prorated) 26 0 3,949,036 3,949,036
EX366 921 0 1,146,882 1,146,882
FR 44 133,219,239 0 133,219,239
FRSS 2 0 705,325 705,325
LIH 3 0 11,077,450 11,077,450
LVE 356 96,761,939 0 96,761,939
MASSS 59 0 19,736,490 19,736,490
0OV65 24,760 104,736,125 0 104,736,125
0OVv65S 1,264 4,672,686 0 4,672,686
PC 69 135,394,847 0 135,394,847
PPV 4 100,780 0 100,780
SO 64 2,015,222 0 2,015,222
Totals 586,660,350 10,913,153,302 11,499,813,652

WCLW/201032 Page 2 of 14



Bell County

Property Count: 7,952

2025 CERTIFIED TOTALS
WCLW - CLEARWATER U.W.C.D.

Under ARB Review Totals

As of Certification

7/22/2025 11:28:12AM

| Land Value |
Homesite: 289,120,023
Non Homesite: 194,306,819
Ag Market: 81,179,463
Timber Market: 0

| Improvement Value |
Homesite: 1,517,169,991
Non Homesite: 618,911,603

| Non Real Count Value |
Personal Property: 154 35,141,906
Mineral Property: 0 0
Autos: 4 986,225

[ Ag Non Exempt Exempt |
Total Productivity Market: 81,179,463 0
Ag Use: 1,555,290 0
Timber Use: 0 0
Productivity Loss: 79,624,173 0
APPROXIMATE TOTAL LEVY = NET TAXABLE * (TAX RATE / 100)
57,211.14 = 2,565,521,994 * (0.002230 / 100)
Certified Estimate of Market Value: 2,485,872,884
Certified Estimate of Taxable Value: 2,318,044,378
Tax Increment Finance Value: o
Tax Increment Finance Levy: 0.00

WCLW/201032

Page 3 of 14

Total Land

Total Improvements

Total Non Real
Market Value

Productivity Loss
Appraised Value

Homestead Cap
23.231 Cap
Assessed Value

Total Exemptions Amount
(Breakdown on Next Page)

Net Taxable

*

+)

)
)

)

564,606,305

2,136,081,594

36,128,131
2,736,816,030

79,624,173
2,657,191,857

34,932,033
24,823,728

2,597,436,096
31,914,102

2,565,521,994



Bell County

Property Count: 7,852

2025 CERTIFIED TOTALS

WCLW - CLEARWATER U.W.C.D.
Under ARB Review Totals

As of Certification

7/22/2025 11:28:17AM

Exemption Breakdown

rTExemptlon Count Local State Total |
- DVA 50 0 402,705 402,705
DV1S 5 0 25,000 25,000
DV2 43 0 412,500 412,500
DV2S 4 0 30,000 30,000
DV3 61 0 628,000 628,000
DV3S 1 0 10,000 10,000
Dv4 234 0 2,520,000 2,520,000
DV4S 8 0 96,000 96,000
DVHS 75 0 22,878,071 22,878,071
DVHSS 3 0 375,413 375,413
EX-XV (Prorated) 1 0 4,321 4,321
EX366 3 0 4,911 4,911
FR 2 109,125 0 109,125
[0)V/:1) 823 4,015,466 0 4,015,466
0ovesS 22 110,000 0 110,000
SO 8 292,590 0 292,590
Totals 4,527,181 27,386,921 31,914,102
WCLW/201032 Page 4 of 14



Bell County

2025 CERTIFIED TOTALS
WCLW - CLEARWATER U.W.C.D.

As of Certification

Property Count: 191,741 Grand Totals 7/22/2025 11:28:12AM
| Land Value |
Homesite: 5,714,305,626
Non Homesite: 4,473,573,377
Ag Market: 4,377,194,090
Timber Market: 2,275,656 Total Land (+) 14,567,348,749
| Improvement Value |
Homesite: 26,937,565,442
Non Homesite: 12,248,697,349 Total Improvements (*) 39,186,262,791
[ Non Real Count Value |
Personal Property: 13,089 4,948,732,730
Mineral Property: 0 0
Autos: 3,783 187,545,895 Total Non Real (+) 5,136,278,625
Market Value = 58,889,890,165
| Ag Non Exempt Exempt |
Total Productivity Market: 4,378,810,325 659,421
Ag Use: 89,509,798 40,796  Productivity Loss ) 4,289,270,185
Timber Use: 30,342 0 Appraised Value . 54,600,619,980
Productivity Loss: 4,289,270,185 618,625
Homestead Cap ) 1,296,985,994
23.231 Cap ¢) 384,093,677
Assessed Value = 52,919,540,309
Total Exemptions Amount ) 11,531,727,754
(Breakdown on Next Page)
Net Taxable = 41,387,812,555
APPROXIMATE TOTAL LEVY = NET TAXABLE * (TAX RATE / 100)
922,948.22 = 41,387,812,555 * (0.002230 / 100)
Certified Estimate of Market Value: 58,638,947,019

Certified Estimate of Taxable Value:

Tax Increment Finance Value:
Tax Increment Finance Levy:

WCLW/201032

41,140,334,939

0.00

Page 5 of 14



Bell County

2025 CERTIFIED TOTALS

WCLW - CLEARWATER U.W.CD.

As of Certification

Property Count: 191,741 Grand Totals 7/22/2025 11:28:17AM
Exemption Breakdown

rExemptlon Count Local ~State Total
ABMNO 1 0 0 0
CH 167 90,827,190 0 90,827,130
CHODO 3 18,932,322 0 18,932,322
DV1 1,477 0 12,644,497 12,644,497
DV1iS 226 0 938,402 938,402
DV2 1,303 0 10,891,770 10,891,770
Dv2s 147 0 962,434 962,434
DV3 2,314 0 20,222,089 20,222,089
DV3S 169 0 1,283,591 1,283,591
DV4 12,125 0 75,264,089 75,264,089
DV4S 976 0 5,766,944 5,766,944
DVCH 1 0 210,301 210,301
DVHS 15,994 0 5,332,744,750 5,332,744,750
DVHSS 956 0 221,543,803 221,543,803
EX 1 0 81,732 81,732
EX-XG 12 0 4,662,007 4,662,007
EX-XI 37 0 44,732,671 44,732,671
EX-XJ 106 0 88,609,707 88,609,707
EX-XL 82 0 34,767,450 34,767,450
EX-XO 2 0 6,250 6,250
EX-XR 176 0 65,379,874 65,379,874
EX-XV 9,306 0 4,983,203,447 4,983,203,447
EX-XV (Prorated) 27 0 3,953,357 3,953,357
EX366 924 0 1,151,793 1,151,793
FR 46 133,328,364 0 133,328,364
FRSS 2 0 705,325 705,325
LIH 3 0 11,077,450 11,077,450
LVE 356 96,761,939 0 96,761,939
MASSS 59 0 19,736,490 19,736,490
ove5 25,583 108,751,591 0 108,751,591
OV65S 1,286 4,782,686 0 4,782,686
PC 69 135,394,847 0 135,394,847
PPV 4 100,780 0 100,780
SO 72 2,307,812 0 2,307,812
Totals 591,187,531 10,940,540,223 11,531,727,754

WCLW/201032 Page 6 of 14



Bell County

2025 CERTIFIED TOTALS
WCLW - CLEARWATER U.W.C.D.

As of Certification

Property Count: 183,789 ARB Approved Totals 7/22/2025 11:28:17AM
State Category Breakdown
|_§tate Code Description Count Acres New Value Market Value Taxable Value |
A SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE 106,442 36,087.6904 $623,105,934 $28,369,731,301 $21,691,932,046
B MULTIFAMILY RESIDENCE 6,768 1,712.3189 $153,811,706 $3,252,734,021 $3,204,776,324
C1 VACANT LOTS AND LAND TRACTS 13,432 13,942.1835 $13,636 $746,729,574 $698,038,574
D1 QUALIFIED AG LAND 9,102 395,992.3990 $0 $4,297,630,862 $87,060,116
D2 IMPROVEMENTS ON QUALIFIED OP 1,855 $716,830 $30,165,466 $29,888,673
E FARM OR RANCH IMPROVEMENT 8,239 52,760.9123 $52,926,605 $2,662,881,490 $2,267,037,912
F1 COMMERCIAL REAL PROPERTY 5,351 15,572.6154 $160,925,298 $4,281,901,575 $4,227,422,005
F2 INDUSTRIAL REAL PROPERTY 229 984.5389 $2,592 $1,429,794,357 $1,308,742,180
J1 WATER SYSTEMS 3 0.9872 $0 $109,411 $109,411
J2 GAS DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 21 8.8594 $0 $73,475,505 $73,438,426
J3 ELECTRIC COMPANY (INCLUDING C 121 102.9182 $0 $517,563,052 $516,161,922
J4 TELEPHONE COMPANY (INCLUDI 42 24.8506 $0 $47,585,083 $47,573,928
J5 RAILROAD 42 177.4227 $0 $136,580,463 $136,580,463
J6 PIPELAND COMPANY 164 8.6740 $0 $66,494,175 $62,751,573
J7 CABLE TELEVISION COMPANY 23 $0 $38,529,746 $38,529,746
L1 COMMERCIAL PERSONAL PROPE 14,162 $0 $1,414,525,166 $1,410,109,903
L2 INDUSTRIAL PERSONAL PROPERT 778 $0 $2,555,934,674 $2,412,518,892
M1 TANGIBLE OTHER PERSONAL, MOB 4,943 $2,569,768 $52,780,205 $49,227,643
N INTANGIBLE PROPERTY AND/OR U 1 $0 $4,364 $4,364
(o} RESIDENTIAL INVENTORY 8,290 2,145.2114 $187,975,405 $452,733,343 $436,507,848
S SPECIAL INVENTORY TAX 166 $0 $123,896,049 $123,896,049
X TOTALLY EXEMPT PROPERTY 11,202 128,927.7275 $833,529,248 $5,601,294,253 $0
Totals 648,449.3094 $2,015,577,022 $56,153,074,135 $38,822,307,998
WCLW/201032 Page 7 of 14



Bell County

2025 CERTIFIED TOTALS
WCLW - CLEARWATER U.W.C.D.

As of Certification

Property Count: 7,952 Under ARB Review Totals 7/22/2025 11:28:17AM
State Category Breakdown
I'_State Code Description Count Acres New Value Market Value Taxable Value |
A SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE 5,338 1,828.6334 $25,331,063 $1,599,714,268 $1,538,326,860
B MULTIFAMILY RESIDENCE 971 156.1677 $10,362,773 $468,624,700 $465,614,494
C1 VACANT LOTS AND LAND TRACTS 392 794.0069 $0 $52,286,982 $45,870,580
D1 QUALIFIED AG LAND 187 6,951.3590 $0 $81,179,463 $1,544,336
D2 IMPROVEMENTS ON QUALIFIED OP 27 $36,387 $682,526 $682,526
E FARM OR RANCH IMPROVEMENT 285 2,221.6657 $8,956,362 $142,365,927 $127,636,160
F1 COMMERCIAL REAL PROPERTY 403 507.9127 $17,101,469 $266,886,384 $261,976,092
F2 INDUSTRIAL REAL PROPERTY 4 22.0470 $0 $13,887,638 $13,795,548
J1 WATER SYSTEMS 3 40.0890 $0 $677,085 $677,085
J3 ELECTRIC COMPANY (INCLUDING C 9 27.8120 $0 $1,484,343 $1,148,876
L1 COMMERCIAL PERSONAL PROPE 155 $0 $36,123,220 $35,999,893
M1 TANGIBLE OTHER PERSONAL, MOB 13 $0 $134,957 $134,957
(0] RESIDENTIAL INVENTORY 444 65.9213 $48,629,593 $72,759,305 $72,116,963
X TOTALLY EXEMPT PROPERTY 4 $0 $9,232 $0
Totals 12,615.6147 $110,417,647 $2,736,816,030 $2,565,524,370
WCLW/201032 Page 8 of 14



Bell County

2025 CERTIFIED TOTALS
WCLW - CLEARWATER U.W.C.D.

As of Certification

Property Count: 191,741 Grand Totals 7/22/2025 11:28:17AM
State Category Breakdown
I_State Code Description Count Acres New Vaiue Market Value Taxable Value ]
A SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE 111,780 37,916.3238 $648,436,997 $29,969,445,569 $23,230,258,906
B MULTIFAMILY RESIDENCE 7,739 1,868.4866 $164,174,479 $3,721,358,721 $3,670,390,818
Ct VACANT LOTS AND LAND TRACTS 13,824 14,736.1904 $13,636 $799,016,556 $743,909,154
D1 QUALIFIED AG LAND 9,289 402,943.7580 $0 $4,378,810,325 $88,604,452
D2 IMPROVEMENTS ON QUALIFIED OP 1,882 $753,217 $30,847,992 $30,571,199
E FARM OR RANCH IMPROVEMENT 8,524 54,982.5780 $61,882,967 $2,805,247,417 $2,394,674,072
F1 COMMERCIAL REAL PROPERTY 5,754 16,080.5281 $178,026,767 $4,548,787,959 $4,489,398,097
F2 INDUSTRIAL REAL PROPERTY 233 1,006.5859 $2,592 $1,443,681,995 $1,322,537,728
J1 WATER SYSTEMS 6 41.0762 $0 $786,496 $786,496
J2 GAS DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 21 8.8594 $0 $73,475,505 $73,438,426
J3 ELECTRIC COMPANY (INCLUDING C 130 130.7302 $0 $519,047,395 $517,310,798
J4 TELEPHONE COMPANY (INCLUDI 42 24.8506 $0 $47,585,083 $47,573,928
J5 RAILROAD 42 177.4227 $0 $136,580,463 $136,580,463
Jé PIPELAND COMPANY 164 8.6740 $0 $66,494,175 $62,751,573
J7 CABLE TELEVISION COMPANY 23 $0 $38,529,746 $38,529,746
L1 COMMERCIAL PERSONAL PROPE 14,317 $0 $1,450,648,386 $1,446,109,796
L2 INDUSTRIAL PERSONAL PROPERT 778 $0 $2,555,934,674 $2,412,518,892
M1 TANGIBLE OTHER PERSONAL, MOB 4,956 $2,569,768 $52,915,162 $49,362,600
N INTANGIBLE PROPERTY AND/OR U 1 $0 $4,364 $4,364
(o] RESIDENTIAL INVENTORY 8,734 2,211.1327 $236,604,998 $525,492,648 $508,624,811
S SPECIAL INVENTORY TAX 166 $0 $123,896,049 $123,896,049
X TOTALLY EXEMPT PROPERTY 11,206 128,927.7275 $833,529,248 $5,601,303,485 $0
Totals 661,064.9241 $2,125,994,669 $58,889,890,165 $41,387,832,368
WCLW/201032 Page 9 of 14



Bell County

2025 CERTIFIED TOTALS

WCLW - CLEARWATER U.W.C.D.

As of Certification

Property Count: 183,789 ARB Approved Totals 7/22/2025 11:28:17AM
CAD State Category Breakdown
r?tate Code Description Count Acres New Vaiue Market Value Taxable Value |
A 3 0.4077 $0 $374,353 $369,353
Al REAL-RES/SINGLE FAMILY 101,503  32,939.0085 $619,328,886 $28,110,194,552 $21,474,438,058
A2 REAL-RES/MOBILE HOME 5,027 3,122.2263 $3,705,632 $252,801,785 $211,021,673
A3 IMPROVEMENTS ONLY-RES 172 26.0479 $71,416 $6,360,611 $6,102,963
B 3 11.1275 $0 $10,882,450 $10,882,450
B1 REAL-RES/MULTI FAMILY 1,369 874.2673 $90,661,985 $1,557,238,755 $1,550,996,474
B2 RESL-RES/DUPLEX 6,422 826.9241 $63,149,721 $1,684,612,816 $1,642,897,400
C1 VACANT LOT 11,615 8,638.0085 $13,636 $467,949,184 $443,244,057
Cc2 VACANT COMMERCIAL LOT 1,827 5,304.1750 $0 $278,780,390 $254,794,517
D1 QUALIFIED AGRICULTURAL LAND 9,108 396,064.9015 $0 $4,298,812,844 $88,242,098
D2 IMPROVEMENTS ON QUALIFIED AG L 1,855 $716,830 $30,165,466 $29,888,673
E NON QUALIFIED AG LAND 3,034  41,392.9929 $17,622 $660,130,693 $639,293,927
E1 FARM & RANCH IMPROVEMENT 5,725 9,812.5828 $52,611,712 $1,939,711,322 $1,575,008,211
E2 MOBILE HOME-FARM & RANCH 957 1,468.8321 $283,149 $58,769,222 $48,555,564
E3 IMPROVEMENTS ONLY-FARM & RAN 142 14.0020 $14,122 $3,088,271 $2,998,228
F1 COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENT 5,343 15,568.1154 $160,925,298 $4,267,845,690 $4,213,366,120
F2 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVEMENT 229 984.5389 $2,592 $1,429,794,357 $1,308,742,180
F3 IMPROVEMENTS ONLY COMMERICA 9 4.5000 $0 $14,055,885 $14,055,885
J1 UTILITIES/WATER SYSTEMS 3 0.9872 $0 $109,411 $109,411
J2 UTILITIES/GAS COMPANIES 21 8.8594 $0 $73,475,505 $73,438,426
J3 UTILITIES/ELECTRIC CO 121 102.9182 $0 $517,563,052 $516,161,922
J4 UTILITIES/TELEPHONE CO 42 24.8506 $0 $47,585,083 $47,573,928
J5 RAILROADS 42 177.4227 $0 $136,580,463 $136,580,463
J6 PIPELINES 164 8.6740 $0 $66,494,175 $62,751,573
J7 CABLE TELEVISION COMPANY 23 $0 $38,529,746 $38,529,746
L1 BUSINESS PERSONAL 14,162 $0 $1,414,525,166 $1,410,109,903
L2 INDUSTRIAL PERSONAL 778 $0 $2,555,934,674 $2,412,518,892
M1 MOBILE HOME (PERSONAL PROP) 4,943 $2,569,768 $52,780,205 $49,227,643
N1 INTANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY 1 $0 $4,364 $4,364
o1 BLDRS/DEVELOPERS VACANT LOT 7,425 1,953.4514 $0 $233,788,722 $224,041,468
02 BLDRS/DEVELOPERS IMPROVED LO 867 191.7600 $187,975,405 $218,944,621 $212,466,380
S SPECIAL INVENTORY 166 $0 $123,896,049 $123,896,049
X TOTAL EXEMPT PROPERTY 11,202 128,927.7275 $833,529,248 $5,601,294,253 $0
Totals 648,449.3094 $2,015,577,022 $56,153,074,135 $38,822,307,999
WCLW/201032 Page 10 of 14



Bell County

2025 CERTIFIED TOTALS

WCLW - CLEARWATER U.W.C.D.

As of Certification

Property Count: 7,952 Under ARB Review Totals 7/22/2025 11:28:17AM
CAD State Category Breakdown
|_S'tate Code Description Count Acres New Vaiue Market Vaiue Taxable Value |
A1 REAL-RES/SINGLE FAMILY 5,293 1,780.1776 $25,324,939 $1,596,551,049 $1,535,660,474
A2 REAL-RES/MOBILE HOME 50 47.3558 $6,124 $3,095,645 $2,598,946
A3 IMPROVEMENTS ONLY-RES 4 1.1000 $0 $67,574 $67,440
B1 REAL-RES/MULT! FAMILY 346 72.9944 $956,579 $208,022,454 $207,019,728
B2  RESL-RES/DUPLEX 906 83.1733 $9,406,194 $260,602,246 $258,594,766
C1 VACANT LOT 271 465.2069 $0 $23,267,628 $20,009,936
C2 VACANT COMMERCIAL LOT 123 328.8000 $0 $29,019,354 $25,860,644
D1 QUALIFIED AGRICULTURAL LAND 187 6,951.3590 $0 $81,179,463 $1,544,336
D2 IMPROVEMENTS ON QUALIFIED AG L 27 $36,387 $682,526 $682,526
E NON QUALIFIED AG LAND 113 1,801.4187 $0 $32,217,263 $29,936,650
E1 FARM & RANCH IMPROVEMENT 226 404.2420 $8,949,807 $109,564,391 $97,145,538
E2 MOBILE HOME-FARM & RANCH 13 16.0050 $6,555 $579,261 $548,960
E3 IMPROVEMENTS ONLY-FARM & RAN 2 $0 $5,012 $5,012
F1 COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENT 403 507.9127 $17,101,469 $266,886,384 $261,976,092
F2 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVEMENT 4 22.0470 $0 $13,887,638 $13,795,548
J1 UTILITIES/WATER SYSTEMS 3 40.0890 $0 $677,085 $677,085
J3 UTILITIES/ELECTRIC CO 9 27.8120 $0 $1,484,343 $1,148,876
L1 BUSINESS PERSONAL 185 $0 $36,123,220 $35,999,893
M1 MOBILE HOME (PERSONAL PROP) 13 $0 $134,957 $134,957
o1 BLDRS/DEVELOPERS VACANT LOT 203 31.6283 $0 $6,168,609 $6,101,267
02 BLDRS/DEVELOPERS IMPROVED LO 246 34.2930 $48,629,593 $66,590,696 $66,015,696
X TOTAL EXEMPT PROPERTY 4 $0 $9,232 $0
Totals 12,615.6147 $110,417,647 $2,736,816,030 $2,565,524,370
WCLW/201032 Page 11 of 14



Bell County 2025 CERTIFIED TOTALS As of Certification
WCLW - CLEARWATER U.W.C.D.
Property Count: 191,741 Grand Totals 7/22/2025 11:28:17AM
CAD State Category Breakdown
'_s'rtate Code Description Count Acres New Value Market Value Taxable Value I
A 3 0.4077 $0 $374,353 $369,353
Al REAL-RES/SINGLE FAMILY 106,796  34,719.1861 $644,653,825 $29,706,745,601 $23,010,098,532
A2  REAL-RES/MOBILE HOME 5,077 3,169.5821 $3,711,756 $255,897,430 $213,620,619
A3 IMPROVEMENTS ONLY-RES 176 27.1479 $71,416 $6,428,185 $6,170,403
B 3 11.1275 $0 $10,882,450 $10,882,450
B1 REAL-RES/MULTI FAMILY 1,716 947.2617 $91,618,564 $1,765,261,209 $1,758,016,202
B2  RESL-RES/DUPLEX 7,328 910.0974 $72,555,915 $1,945,215,062 $1,901,492,166
C1 VACANT LOT 11,886 9,103.2154 $13,636 $491,216,812 $463,253,993
C2  VACANT COMMERCIAL LOT 1,950 5,632.9750 $0 $307,799,744 $280,655,161
D1 QUALIFIED AGRICULTURAL LAND 9,295 403,016.2605 $0 $4,379,992,307 $89,786,434
D2  IMPROVEMENTS ON QUALIFIED AG L 1,882 $753,217 $30,847,992 $30,571,199
E NON QUALIFIED AG LAND 3,147  43,194.4116 $17,622 $692,347,956 $669,230,577
E1 FARM & RANCH IMPROVEMENT 5,951 10,216.8248 $61,561,519 $2,049,275,713 $1,672,153,749
E2  MOBILE HOME-FARM & RANCH 970 1,484.8371 $289,704 $59,348,483 $49,104,524
E3  IMPROVEMENTS ONLY-FARM & RAN 144 14.0020 $14,122 $3,093,283 $3,003,240
F1 COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENT 5,746  16,076.0281 $178,026,767 $4,534,732,074 $4,475,342,212
F2 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVEMENT 233 1,006.5859 $2,592 $1,443,681,995 $1,322,537,728
F3 IMPROVEMENTS ONLY COMMERICA 9 4.5000 $0 $14,055,885 $14,055,885
J1 UTILITIES/WATER SYSTEMS 6 41.0762 $0 $786,496 $786,496
J2 UTILITIES/GAS COMPANIES 21 8.8594 $0 $73,475,505 $73,438,426
J3 UTILITIES/ELECTRIC CO 130 130.7302 $0 $519,047,395 $517,310,798
J4 UTILITIES/TELEPHONE CO 42 24.8506 $0 $47,585,083 $47,573,928
JS RAILROADS 42 177.4227 $0 $136,580,463 $136,580,463
Jé PIPELINES 164 8.6740 $0 $66,494,175 $62,751,573
J7 CABLE TELEVISION COMPANY 23 $0 $38,529,746 $38,529,746
L1 BUSINESS PERSONAL 14,317 $0 $1,450,648,386 $1,446,109,796
L2 INDUSTRIAL PERSONAL 778 $0 $2,555,934,674 $2,412,518,892
M1 MOBILE HOME (PERSONAL PROP) 4,956 $2,569,768 $52,915,162 $49,362,600
N1 INTANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY 1 $0 $4,364 $4,364
o1 BLDRS/DEVELOPERS VACANT LOT 7,628 1,985.0797 $0 $239,957,331 $230,142,735
02  BLDRS/DEVELOPERS IMPROVED LO 1,113 226.0530 $236,604,998 $285,5635,317 $278,482,076
S SPECIAL INVENTORY 166 $0 $123,896,049 $123,896,049
X TOTAL EXEMPT PROPERTY 11,206 128,927.7275 $833,529,248 $5,601,303,485 $0
Totals  661,064.9241 $2,125,994,669 $58,889,890,165 $41,387,832,369
WCLW/201032 Page 12 of 14



Bell County

2025 CERTIFIED TOTALS
WCLW - CLEARWATER U.W.C.D.

As of Certification

Property Count: 191,741 Effective Rate Assumption 7122/2025 11:28:17AM
New Value
TOTAL NEW VALUE MARKET: $2,125,994,669
TOTAL NEW VALUE TAXABLE: $1,133,993,921
New Exemptions

[ Exemption Description Count ]
EX-XL 11.231 Organizations Providing Economic Deve 2 2024 Market Value $0
EX-XV Other Exemptions (including public property, r 74 2024 Market Value $13,222,583
EX366 HOUSE BILL 366 105 2024 Market Value $1,782,891
ABSOLUTE EXEMPTIONS VALUE LOSS $15,005,474

[ Exemption Description Count Exemption Amount |
DV1 Disabled Veterans 10% - 29% 86 $639,045
bv1s Disabled Veterans Surviving Spouse 10% - 29% 13 $60,000
DVv2 Disabled Veterans 30% - 49% 105 $933,216
Dva2s Disabled Veterans Surviving Spouse 30% - 49% 8 $52,500
DvV3 Disabled Veterans 50% - 69% 189 $1,990,000
DvV3s Disabled Veterans Surviving Spouse 50% - 69% 7 $60,000
Dv4 Disabled Veterans 70% - 100% 1,141 $10,778,880
Dv4S Disabled Veterans Surviving Spouse 70% - 100 46 $348,000
DVHS Disabled Veteran Homestead 807 $232,502,247
DVHSS Disabled Veteran Homestead Surviving Spouse 26 $7,615,109
ove5 OVER 65 2,140 $9,113,439
ov658 OVER 65 Surviving Spouse 61 $250,000
PARTIAL EXEMPTIONS VALUE LOSS 4,629 $264,342,436
NEW EXEMPTIONS VALUE LOSS $279,347,910

Increased Exemptions

I_Exempllon Description Count Increased Exemption Amount

INCREASED EXEMPTIONS VALUE LOSS

TOTAL EXEMPTIONS VALUE LOSS $279,347,910
New Ag / Timber Exemptions
New Annexations
New Deannexations
Average Homestead Value
Category A and E
I Count of HS Residences Average Market Average HS Exemption Average Taxable |
74,188 $304,279 $17,394 $286,885
Category A Only
[ Count of HS Residences Average Market Average HS Exemption Average Taxabie |
70,172 $299,140 $15,330 $283,810

WCLW/201032

Page 13 of 14



Bell County

2025 CERTIFIED TOTALS

WCLW - CLEARWATER U.W.C.D.
Lower Value Used

As of Certification

Count of Protested Properties

Total Market Value

Total Value Used

WCLW/201032

7,952

$2,736,816,030.00

Page 14 of 14

$2,318,044,378






50-876

Statements required in notice if the proposed tax rate exceeds the no-new-revenue tax rate but does not exceed the voter-approval
tax rate, as prescribed by Tax Code §§26.06(b-2).

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON TAX INCREASE

This notice only applies to a taxing unit other than a special taxing unit or municipality with a population of less than 30,000,
regardless of whether it is a special taxing unit.

PROPOSED TAX RATE: $0.002230 per $100
NO-NEW-REVENUE TAX RATE: $0.002130 per $100
VOTER-APPROVAL TAX RATE: $0.002570 per $100

The no-new-revenue tax rate is the tax rate for the 2025 tax year that will raise the same amount of property tax revenue for
CLEARWATER U.W.C.D. from the same properties in both the 2024 tax year and the 2025 tax year.

The voter-approval tax rate is the highest tax rate that CLEARWATER U.W.C.D. may adopt without holding an election to seek voter
approval of the rate.

The proposed tax rate is greater than the no-new-revenue tax rate. This means that CLEARWATER U.W.C.D. is proposing to increase
property taxes for the 2025 tax year.

A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED TAX RATE WILL BE HELD ON 08/27/2025 01:30 PM (CT) at Clearwater Underground Water
Conservation District, 640 Kennedy Court, Belton, TX

The proposed tax rate is not greater than the voter-approval tax rate. As a result, CLEARWATER U.W.C.D. is not required to hold an
election at which voters may accept or reject the proposed tax rate. However, you may express your support for or opposition to the
proposed tax rate by contacting the members of the CLEARWATER UWCD of CLEARWATER U.W.C.D. at their offices or by attending
the public hearing mentioned above.

YOUR TAXES OWED UNDER ANY OF THE TAX RATES MENTIONED ABOVE CAN BE CALCULATED AS FOLLOWS:
Property tax amount = ( tax rate ) x ( taxable value of your property } / 100

(List names of all members of the governing body below, showing how each voted on the proposal to consider the tax increase or, if
one or more were absent, indicating absences.)

FOR the proposal: Jody Williams, President Leland Gersbach, Vice President C. Gary Young, Secretary Scott A. Brooks, Director Jim
Brown, Director

AGAINST the proposal:
PRESENT and not voting:
ABSENT:

Visit Texas.gov/PropertyTaxes to find a link to your local property tax database on which you can easily access information regarding
your property taxes, including information about proposed tax rates and scheduled public hearings of each entity that taxes your
property.

The 86th Texas Legislature modified the manner in which the voter-approval tax rate is calculated to limit the rate of growth of
property taxes in the state.

The following table compares the taxes imposed on the average residence homestead by CLEARWATER U.W.C.D. last year to the
taxes proposed to the be imposed on the average residence homestead by CLEARWATER U.W.C.D. this year.

2024 2025 Change
Total tax rate (per $100 of value) $0.002230 $0.002230 0% increase
Average homestead taxable value $272,596 $286,885 5.24% increase
Tax on average homestead $6 $6 0% increase
Total tax levy on all properties $850,642 $917,444 7.85% increase

For assistance with tax calculations, please contact the tax assessor for CLEARWATER U.W.C.D. at (254} 939-5841 or
customerservice@bellcad.org , or visit www.bellcad.org for more information.



88 | TEMPLE DAILY 'I'EI.EGRA.!

WEATHER

l-'ll_ll&_Yr.AT: 18, !OI§

Tooar ;-AI\II_I):V B  Thursoar 0ZONE LEVEL
i Today: 44
CENTRAL “"““n_m
TEXAS 7-DAY Unbastery or sanitive
FORECASY freere 101180
83*  78*  94° 76"  95° 76° 987 75 94° 15°  93° 14° ::_‘:‘:;:m
Bay Mght Day Night Day Night Doy Mgt DOay Ngt Day Nght Day Mgt e
Sanry y cloudy ly cloody y Patiycloudy  Partiycleody  Partycleadty Ly avd
ALMANAC
LAKE LEVELS
vtk UV INDEX — e
ey Garest matease SUN AND MOON More weather Today: 11
e s34 s g DMmsm R Set  TheMoss  Rise St detallsare (=ef  e
Stifthonss 2300 201 !‘.'..'., &:: :1':: s‘:’m u_-:-m zL:;D.I. ‘a‘!a.ulableat v 110
Granger 504 S0A26 43 Sunday pm. Soadsy  12:57am. 2SSpm. £OM, Source
ALASKA

River barriers prevent flood damage from glacial outburst

BY CEDAR ATTANASIO
AND GENE JOHNSON
ASSOCIATED PRESS

New sandbag-style barri-
ers installed along a nver m
Alaska’s capital caty held back

carlier n the dsy But the wa-
ter receded and by late afier-

peaL water levels There were

amilsr to
lhehslt\\v\ﬂls.\\henﬂoo-t
ing was and some

homes washed away.

The bamers have been o
point of coatention, with some
homeowners m the flood zone
objecting to thewr cost and
suggesing  officials  should
pursue a longer-term fix. But
they “really have protected The
our commanity,” Juneau City
Manager Kate Koester told a
news conference.

“If it weren't for them, we
would have hundreds snd bun-
dreds of ooded bomes.” she
said.

bome to 30,000 people in
southeast Alaska, and 15 a pop-
ular tounst attracuon duc to
its proximity and easy access
on walking trauls. Homes on
the city’s outskarts are within
miles of Mendenhall Lake,
which sits below the glacier,
and many fromt the Menden-

WORLD

hall River, into which the gla-
cial outburst tlowed.

Juneau, which is accessi-
ble only by boat and plane,
is 570 miles southeast of An-
dxnge. Alaska’s largest aity

fQooding won't impact

Friday’s summit in Anchoe-

age between President Donald

Tmmp and Russian President
ir Putin.

since 2011 and has goiten
worse m recent years. It hap-
pens because a smaller gla-
cier near Mendenhall Glacier
retreated — a casualty of the
warming climate — and left a
basin that fills with rainwater
and snowmelt cach spring and
summer, dammed by the gla-
cier,

When the water builds uvp
enough pressure, it forces its

way under or around the ice
dam, enters Mendenhall Lake,
and flows down the Menden-
hall River

The aty saw  successive
vears of record flooding
2023 and 2024, with flood-
ing extending farther into the
Mendenhall Valley

Last year, nearly 300 res:-
dences were damaged.

A large outburst can release
some 15 billion gallons of
water, according to the Unt.
versity of Alaska Southeast
and Alaska Climate Adapta-
tion Science Center. That's the
oquivalent of nuﬂy 23,000
Olympic-size
pooals. During I.lst)ar 's flood.
the flow rate in the Menden-
hall River was about half that
of Nisgara Falls, the rescarch-

ors say
City officials responded to

Death toll in Kashmir flash
floods rises to at least 32

SRINAGAR, india (AP)
At lcast 32 peoplc are dead
in flash foods caused by
torrential rams m a remote,
mountamous village m Ind-
an-controlled Kashmir, a top
disaster management  offi-
cial sud Thursday, as rescue
teams scouring the devastated
Himalasan village brought at
Icast 100 people to safety

Mohammed Irshad said res-
cue teams scounng the dev-
astated Hunalayan village of
Chositi brought at least 100
people to safety He sad mi-
tial estimations suggested at
least 50 others were stll miss-

g

India’s deputy munister for
scicnce and technology, Jiteo-
dra Stngh, smd the Hoods were
tnggered by a cloudburst in
Jammu and Kashmir's Chesiti
arca and “could result in sub-
stantial casuall

Chositi s a remote Hims-
layan village in Kashmir’s
Kishtwar district and 15 the
last village accesnible to mo-
tor vehicles on the route of an
annuwal Hindu pignmage to
a mountainous shane. Multi-
ple pilgnms were also feared
1o be affected by the disaster
Officials said pilgnmage has
been suspended and more res-
cue teams were on the way to
the arca.

Th Hood:

A building damaged in flash floods caused by
rains is seen Thursday in a remote, mountainous village in
Chositi area, indlan controlled

Delhi’s top administrator in
Kashmur, offered condolences
ﬁx the loss of life and said he

had directed personnel from
India’s military and paremili-
tary forces, as well as police
and disaster management offi-
cials, to strengthen rescuc and
relief

away the main community
kitchen set up for the pilgrims
as well as dozens of vehicles
and motorbikes, officials said

Lt Gov. Manv) Siha, New

S\nidéx, intense downpours
over small areas known as

concerns from property own-
exs this year by working with
state, federal and tribal entities
10 mstall a temporary levee
along roughly 2.5 mules of nv-

crbank in an attempt to guard ward

against wadespread flooding,
The 10,000 “Hesco™ bamers
are esscotially giant, rein-
forced sandbags intended to
protect more than 460 proper-
ties, said emcrgcncy manager
Ryan O Shat

The Juncau Asemhlv re-

flood zome to cover 40% of
the cost — about $6,300 each
over 10 years. Additionally, a
handful of homeowners were
asked to chip in $50,000 to-
reinforcing the niver
bank About anc-quarier of
the residents formatly object-
ed, not enough to torpedo the

project
Two homeowners have sued,

complaining that the govern-
ment was taking their property

On Tuesday and Wednesday.
some water secped mto yards
through drains that bad been
mstalled under the barriers
In other spots, trees flvating
down the nver struck and
damaged the bamiers, offictals
said.

Ann Wilkinson Lind, who

seeped through small culvernts
under the bamier in her back-
yard and reached knee-deep in
ber home's craw] space The
damage wasn'y catastrophic,
but it was still disturbing If~
ter the mstallation of features
wtended to protect against
flooding. she said

“1 felt confident that the bam-
ers hod a chance,” she sad. *1
never, ever, ever thought about
the culverts ... and I was just
shocked end bowted overby it”

The U.S. Army Corps of En-
gincers is at the start of what's
expected to be a yearslong
process of studying conditions
n the region and examuung
options for a more permanent
solution, such as a levee The
umeline has some
residents, who say it’s unrea-
sopable.

Outburst floods are expect-
ed 10 commue as long as the
Mendephall Glacier acts as an
we dam to scal off the basin,
which could span another 25
to 60 years, sccording to the
university and scicnce center

quired in the

10 eroct the bamiers without
them

amount of

Statements required in notice ¥ the proposed tax rate axcesd's the no-nNew-
but does not axceed the voter- approval tax rate, as prescribed by Tax Code §26.060-2).

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
ON TAX INCREASE

A tax rate of $0.002230 per $100 vakiation has besn proposed by the goveming body of

CLEARWATERUW.C.D..
PROPOSED TAX RATE $0.002230 per $100
NO-NEW-REVENUE TAX RATE $0.002130,per $100
VOTER-APPROVAL TAX RATE $0.002570 per $100

The no-new-revenus tax rate is the tax rate for the 2025 tax year that wil raise the same
tax revenue for CLEARWATER U.W.
both the 2024 tax year and the 2025 tax year.

D. from the same properties in

-rOvenue tax rate

mmwmrsammtmmmawAmuwco may adopt

without holding an election to sesk voter approval of
mwmm«bmmmemmmm This means that
CLE/ UW.CD.is property taxes for the 2025 tax ysar,

A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED TAX RATE WILL BE HELD ON August 27, 2025
at 1:30 PM (CT) at the Clearwater Boardroom, 840 Kennedy Court, Betton, TX.

The proposed tax rate is not greater then the voter-approval tax rate. As a result,
CLEARWATER U.W.C.D. is not required to hold an slection at which voters may accept or
Moctmepmpouduxme However, mmwmwhwwﬂmm

rate by Body of CLI
UWCD mmmuuwmmwmmmm

'YOUR TAXES OWED UNDER ANY OF THE TAX RATES MENTIONED ABOVE CAN BE
CALCULATED AS FOLLOWS:

Property tax amount = { tax rate ) x { taxable vaiue of your property ) / 100

{Ust names of all members of the goveming body below, showing how each voted on the
proposal to consider the tax incroase or, if one or mone were absent, indicating ebsences.}

FOR the proposal: Jody Wiliams, President; Laland Gersbach, Vice President;
C. Gary Young, Secretary; Scott A. Brooks, Director; Jim Brown, Director
proposal:

Vit T
mmmmmmmmmmmmm
‘scheduled public hearings of each entity that taxes your property

The 86th Legislature modified the manner in which the voter-approval tax rate is calculated
mmwmumdmm«mmm

the taxes imposed on the average residence homestead by

CLEARWATERUWCD last year to the taxes proposed to be imposed on the average
by CLE/ UW.C.D. this year.

has increased because

Kashmir, 2024 208 Change
Total tax rate $0.002230 $0.002230 0% increase

flash floods and landstides. | || tper $100 of vakue)
Cloudbursts have the poten-
tial to wreak havoc by musmg Average homestead | $272,506 206,885 5.24% incrozse
wntense flooding and land- taxable value
slides, 1
of people in the mountainous Tax on average 8 £ 3 0% increase
regions homestead

Experts  say  cloudbursts Total tax Jevy on &l | $850,642 $917,044 785% increase
have increased in recent years properties
partly due to climate change,
whilc damage fromthe storms | For assistance with tax calelations, please contact the tax sasessor for CLEARWATER
also uUwCD. l1254'930-584|ot or visit

more

regions, which are pmne- to

of ds P in

mountain regions.




WLLEBIALY HEIALD | FREMY, AUGUST 15, 2005

~ SPORTS & NEws A7

'OUT AND ABOUT

Art events, car meets and more this weekend in the Killeen-Fort Hood area

BY JANA LI KILOREASE
KLLEEN QALY HERRD

With the first day of school behind us,
take some time this weekend to get out-
side and enjoy ane or more of the shows
or concerts in the area. Use the long days
of sunshine we still have to take a hike,
bicycle one of the many trails in the
county maybe take a swim at one of the
area pools or get out on the water at one
of our lakes. It will be all too soon that
cooler weather starts to make it more
difficult to enjoy the outdoors.

15
+ Bo’s Barn Dancehall and Club will
host live music by Mark Richey from 8
pm. to midnight. Cover is $10. Happy
Hour from 5 to 8 pm. For more informa-

tion, go to wwwbosbarndancehail.com,
or call 254939-7131.

ing new Music by the ane and only Pu-
nalavaa Band, Doors open at 3 pm. with
entertainment from 5 - 11:30 pm. Killeen
Civic and Conference Center 3401 S. WS.
Young Drive.

« Friday Nights Jam with open micand

entertain at Schoepf’s B-B-Q from 610
pm. 702 E Central Ave. in Belton.

AUG.16
+ Local Author Fair at the Harker

at the Killeen Arts and Activities Center
from 11 a.m. to 5 pm. over 30 vendors at

starts at 7 pm. at 324 North Gray St. on Gotn Kola from 10- 11:30 a.m. at the
Break out the neon and tease up that hair Extension Groumds
— it’s time to party like it's 1969, Totally ~ Centex; 1605 N. Main St. in Belton. Class
tubular 80s hits and free-to-play Music 1limit 50. Please register here to securea
Bingo. spot: hitps://forms.gle/dF2T:

+ Grand opening at 88th Street Eats,
starts at 9 a.m. 410 S. 35th Street in
Killeen. yil

« Bo’s Barn Dance Hall and Club will Gardening: The Jour-
host 1ive music by Dave Jorgenson and  ney fram Seeds to Harvest from the Bell
Dawn from 9 pm. to 1 a.m. Cover is $10. County Gardeners is a free semi-
Happy Hour from 5 to 8 pm. For more narnunsmpm.nﬂmlieﬂ()mmty
information, go to ndance- 1605 N. Main St. in
hall.com, or call 254-939-7131. Belton, Class limit {s 50. To secure a spot

« Uncle Lucius Live at Schoepf’s with  in the class, register at https://forms.
show starting at 8 pm. Enjoy gle/
barbecue then settle down for a great
concert. 702 E Central Ave. in Belton MUSEUMS AKD EXHIBITS

« Award winning Elvis tribute artist « The Bell County Museum, 201 N.

John Cobb and live music from Fever
the Band will perform at Palace The-
atre in Marlin. Doors open at 8 p.m.,
show at 7 pm. General admission
seating, BYOB, Elvisand

Main St. in Belton, is open from noon to
5 pm. Tuesday through Friday and 10
am. to 5 pm. Saturday

« The Temple Railroad and Heritage
315 W. Avenue B, 1s h

Priscilla look-alike contest. For tickets
£0 to https://tinyurl.com/56 7k336f. Call
254-252-7847 for more information,

«» The first Fort Hood “MilitaryHero-
Con” event is set for this weekend, The
free two-day event will be held from
10 a.m. to 6 pm. Saturday and 10a.m.
to 4 p.m. Sunday, at Fort Hood's Post
Exchange at 4250 Clear Creek Blvd.

+ Central Texas Sportsman'’s Club
Re-Grand Opening from 58 p.m. Fam-
{ly-friendly games, School supply give-
aways, live entertainment, 50/50 cash
drawing, raffles and more. 685 Centex
Sportsman Club Road

BT
« All White Rodeo Day Party Brunch
Iine-dance

josting
its newest exhibit, “First Fleet NASA's
Space Program 1961-1986,” until Sept.
13. The museum is open from 10 a.m. to

4 pm. Tuesday through Saturday Every days only

first Saturday of the month, the mu-
seum hosts a free, themed Family Day
Go to wwwitemplerrhm.org for more
information. Admission is $4 for adults,
$3 for seniors, $2 for kids ages 5 to 12,
and free for children under 5.

« The National Mounted Warrior
Museum, 105 Trooper Loop at Fort
Hood, is open to the public from 10a.m.
to 5 pm. Tuesday through Saturday. for
more information visit the website at
https://tinyurl.com/4r3bSpyx.

+ The Salado Museum and College
Park, 423 S. Main St is open from 10
am. to 4 pm. Monday through Friday
Go to wwwsaladomuseum org for more
information.

« The Temple Children’s Museum at
11 N. Fourth St. is open from 10a.m. to 3
p.m. Tuesday through Saturday Gen-

303 S. Western Ave. is open from 10 a.m.
to4 pm. Fridays and For
more information call §12-556-2224.

« The Mayborm Museum at Baylor
University, 1300 8. University Parks
Drive in Waco, is open from 10a.m. to
5 pm. Monday through Saturday, and
1to 5 p.m. Sunday. Admission is $10 for
adults, $9 for senfors and $8 for kids 12
and under.

« The Texas Ranger Hall of Fame
and Museum, 100 Texas Ranger Trail
in Waco, is open daily from 9 am. to
5 pam. Admission for adults is $10.50,
children (6-12) is $4, children under 6
fres, seniors (60+) is $8.50, military with
ID is $8.50 and law enforcement with [D
is $6.50. For more information visit the
website at www.texasranger.org.

RECURRING EVENTS

» The Family Aquatic Center in Lions
Park is open from 10 a.m. to 6:30 pm.
Saturday and 1 to 6 pm. Sunday through
Labor Day, Sept. 1.

'l'he[nanranchPoollsopenﬂ'um
11 am. to 8 p.m. on Saturdays and Sun:
through Labor Day, Sept. 1.

«+ The Temple Farmers Market is held
from 7 a.m. to noon every Tuesday and
Thursday at 8420 W Adams Ave.

« The Belton Farmers Market is held
from 7 a.m. to noon every Saturday at
411 E. Central Ave.

« The Bell County Master Gardeners’
Help Desk is open Monday through
Thursday throughout the month of

.hme.AeerﬁﬂadMaerardenerwﬂl

hmdqmﬂomandwncems.swpby
at 1605 N. Main St., Suite 105, Belton. Or
call 254-933-5305 or email at bell. mg@
agnet.tamuedu.

« Salado Sandlot Fridays start at 7:30

are invited to play in an informal game
focused on fun. Cost {5 $15 per player.

801 North 4th Street. goeson from 10am. to4 pm.Sunday at  eral admisston is $6 per person. The Go to https//tinyurl.com/4f8wjdpd to
« The Car Meet at Hakai No Kamigami  Fart Hood's h 4250 Clear {s geared toward ages 8 and register.
auto repair shop from6-10pm. at 124N.  Creek Bivd. under and their families for hands-on + The Harker Heights Farmers Market
Fourth Street in Killeen, There will be learning. Visit the website for more is closed until October 4. Hours are 9
raffles and AJG.20 information www.templechildrens- am. to 1 pm. at 305 Miller’s Crossing.
« Back to the 808 Music Bingo at South- « Bell County Master Gard will org for more information. There will be local farmers, crafters,
ern Roots Brewing Company-Killeen holdmmanthxyﬂerbsnmcmm « The Lampasas County Museumat  and more avaflable.
Stalements requred in nobce if the proposed tax rate exceeds the mvumhxrmmbesml
NFL “P'm exactly where I'm supposed to exceed the voler-approval tax fate, 83 prescribed by Tax Code §528 06(b-
e o e 0 woulasey e | NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON TAX INCREASE
same thing. God doesn’t make mistakes.
ROMMGEAS Everything happens for a reason. So, mm%m :’ o m?:’. m it
P’m super grateful to be a Panther.”
Stroud said. “Butlike meand him, Ifeel  As their NFL careers have blossomed, || propGSED TAX RATE. $0.002230 per $100
like our process was just getting better,  Stroud and Young have remained close. NO-NEW-REVENUE TAX RATE. $0.002130 per $100
, getting better, getting bet-  Young was asked to describe the best VOTER-APPROVAL TAX RATE: $0.002570 per $100
ter: 8o, I think that was our mindset thing about Stroud as a friend.
it’s cool to be in these moments.” “T've seen him have ups and downs,” The no-new-revenue tax rate is the tax rale for the 2025 tax year that wil rsse the same amount of property
The Panthers were criticized in 2023 Young said. “T've seen him have so much tax revenwe Sor CLEARWATER UW.CO from the same properties n both the 2024 tax year and the 2025

for selecting Young, who struggled as
a rookie as the team went 2-15. Mean-
while, Stroud led Houston to the post-
season after a three-year absence and
was named AP Offensive Rookie of the
Year.

Neither player likes talking about the
what-ifs when it comes to that draft,
and Young {nsisted Thursday that he's

success at this level (and) throughout all
that he's been the exact same person ...
and [ know a lot of people on this team
and everyone tells me how greatof a
leader he is, how much he means for this

tax yeas

The voter-approval tax rate is the highest tax
an election %o seek volar approval of the rate

The proposed tax rate s greater than the no-new-revenue iax rale This means that CLEARWATER
UW.CD. is proposing bo increase property taxes for the 2025 tax year

APUBUCHEARNGONTNEPROPOSEDTAXRATEWLLBEHELDONMMSN 30 PM(CT) at
Clearwater Underground Water Conservebon Districl, 840 Kennedy Court, Befion.

UWC.0 mey adopt

The proposed tax rate is not greatar than the voter-approval tax rate As 8 result, CLEARWATERUW.C D
13 not required ko hold an electon at which volers may accept of reject the proposed tax rate However,
YOU MY express your support for or opposibon (o the proposed bax rata by contacting the members of
e CLEARWATER UWCD of CLEARWATER UW.CD &l thes offices or by atiendng the pubbc hearing

happy with how things turned out. the things that I admire most.”
CREDITS and [ was sitting in the meetings, and
whether was a staff meeting or a team
meeting, there was just so many things
FROMPAGEAS that I was like, “You know what, [do
believe that.™
2008, he admits to being overly focused Carroll's relentless desire to create
on trying to bulld an offense so prolific  competition was an aspect that particu-
that someone would have to hire him for larly Schottenheimer. The
atop job. phrase, “Compete every day” was seen
There had been lid and h
in his time with the Jets under Eric camp, and with no set depth chart, Schot-
Mangini and Rex Ryan, less so with the  tenheimer looked to make sure players
Rams under Jeff Fisher in St.Louis. It  are rewarded in practice when they rise
took Carroll’s approach to get Schotten-  to that aim There are also battles off the
heimer to realize the other field, with b a particular favor-
off the field are just as important to suc- ltedurlnalhesmnmersﬂnﬂnSouﬁlem
cess as being a great play caller. California

*“T mean, Jeff was a fim-loving players'
coach. Rex was a wild man, in a good
way Eric Mangini was very much like
coach (Bill) Belichick. My dad was cer-
tainly, you know, a certain way I chuckle
on that one,” Schottenheimer sald.

“But I just think, when I watched Pete,

CHARCUTERIL BOARDS A BORES

celebrate everything.

grazecraze.com

“T've always been a competitor, wheth-
er 'm good at something or not, 'm
going to try to find a way to win. I don't
always find a way to win, but I'm going
to try And so I think he caught me at
the right time,” Schottenheimer satd of
Carroll.

mentioned abave

Scott A Brooks, Owector; Sm Brown, Orecior
AGAINST the proposal:
PRESENT and not voting.

ABSENT

the rate of growth of propesty taxes in the state.

CLEARWATER UW.C D this year

YOUR TAXES OWED UNDER ANY OF THE TAX RATES MENTIONED ABOVE CAN BE CALCULATED
AS FOLLOWS:

Propesty tax amount = ( tax rats ) x { taxable value of your property } / 100
FOR the proposal. Sody Yrillams, Preswdent, Leland Gersbech. Vice President; C. Gary Young, Secretary:

Visit Texas gov/PropertyTaxes to find a link to your local property tax database on wheh you can eesily
access mionmation regarding your property taxes, mduding information ebout proposed tax relss and
schedided public heanngs of each enily that taxes your property

The 85t Texas Legsiatare modkSed the mannes in which the voter-approval tax rate i3 caloulatad to fmit

The following table compares the taxes imposed on the sverage resdence homestead by CtEARWATER
UWCD last year lo the taxes proposad Io the be imposed on the average resxence homesiead by

2024 2025 Change
pogri s 2= i
m:m $272506 $286 885 5 24% ncrease
Toxon s homesesd % [] Ll
:::::"’I Gl $350642 s 785% increase

Fammmmm please contact the lax sssessor for CLEARWATER UW.CD. ot

(254) 939-5841 or

or vist

{Legal Natics published in the Kileen Dedy Herald on August 15, 2025.)

S8 U 1 L= 7 T b i |







RESOLUTION AND ORDER
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CLEARWATER
UNDERGROUND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
MEETING HELD AUGUST 27, 2025

THE STATE OF TEXAS §

§ A RESOLUTION AND ORDER
COUNTY OF BELL §

§ SETTING ANNUAL TAX RATE
CLEARWATER UWCD §

The Board of Directors of the Clearwater Underground Water Conservation District met in a
regular session, open to the public, after due notice, at the Clearwater Underground Water
Conservation District, located at 640 Kennedy Court, Belton, Texas, within the boundaries of the
District, on the 27" day of August 2025, whereupon the roll was called of the members of the Board
of Directors, to wit:

Leland Gersbach President

Jody Williams Vice President
C. Gary Young Secretary
Scott A. Brooks Director
James Brown Director

Five (5) of the five (5) Board members were present, thus constituting a quorum.

WHEREUPON, among other business conducted by the Board, Director
introduced the Order set out below and moved for its adoption, which motion was seconded by
Director and, after full discussion and the question being put to the Board of Directors,
said motion was carried by the following vote:

“Aye”: __3 “No™ ___ 3 “Abstained”: ___; “Absent”™ __.
The Order thus adopted is as follows:

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors was authorized by applicable statutory law to levy a
sufficient tax to cover all maintenance and operation expenses of the District;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors reviewed and approved its budget for its fiscal year
October 1, 2025, through September 30, 2026, and determined what tax rate should be set to meet
such budget requirements;



WHEREAS, the appraisal roll of the District for 2025 has been prepared and certified by the
Tax Appraisal District of Bell County and submitted to the District's tax collector; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
CLEARWATER UNDERGROUND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT THAT:

L

The operation and maintenance tax rate for tax year 2025 shall be $0.00223 per one hundred
dollars ($100) of assessed valuation. Be it known that this 2025 tax rate is the same as last year’s tax
rate at $0.002230 per $100 of assessed valuation, but this rate will increase total taxes in Clearwater

by ___ %, or increase by ___¢ per year on the average appraised value of a residence at $

THIS TAX RATE WILL RAISE MORE TAXES FOR MAINTENANCE
AND OPERATIONS THAN LAST YEAR'’S TAX RATE.

The Bell County Tax Assessor and Collector shall take all steps necessary and authorized by
the law to collect taxes as owed pursuant to this order. Said taxes shall be levied, assessed and
collected at the rate of $0.00223 per $100 valuation for 2025 as provided for in the District’s enabling
act; Chapters 36 Texas Groundwater Water Code, as applicable; and all other applicable laws.

I

The Board President or Vice President are authorized to execute, and the Secretary or any
Assistant Secretary to attest, this order on behalf of the Board of Directors.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the 27* day of August 2025.

CLEARWATER UNDERGROUND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

By:

Jody Williams, Board President (or)
Leland Gersbach, Board Vice President
ATTEST:

C. Gary Young, Board Secretary (or)
Dirk Aaron, Assistant Secretary






Clearwater Underground
Water Conservation District

STAFF REPORT

Board Meeting Agenda Item #11
August 27, 2025 Surety Bond for CTWA Representative

Agenda Items:

11. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action, if necessary, to approve surety bond for CTWA
representative.

Narrative:

The District holds bonds for all elected Board members and employees of the District. The Board
recently appointed Mr. Dirk Aaron to serve as the District’s representative on the Central Texas
Water Alliance Board of Directors. Since the representative appointed will not be an elected director
or employee of the District, the District has the option to purchase a miscellaneous surety bond for
Mr. Aaron. Clearwater UWCD would be listed at the Oblige.

The Public Official bond covers the official’s term of office and guarantees that the bonded official
will faithfully perform all official duties. The public official may be elected or appointed to a full-
time or part-time position. These bonds are the direct result of state statute or other type of public
charter and specifically determine the exposure for a given bond. Miscellaneous bonds are those
obligations that do not clearly fall within the scope of the other bond categories. Some of these
bonds are required by law and must follow the applicable statutes, ordinances or regulations.

The Hartford Insurance Group provides a variety of surety bonds. The quote below was provided
by the District’s bonding agents at Victor Insurance Managers, LLC, through The Hartford

Insurance bond products.

Bond Amount — Bond Term — Cost

$10.000 bond — 1-vear - $50.00; 3-year - $130

$25.000 bond — 1-vear - $100.00; 3-year - $260

$50,000 bond — 1-year - $200.00; 3-year - $520

$100.000 bond — 1-year - $400.00; 3-year - $1,040

GM Recommendations:

v' Allow District staff to complete an application to purchase a $25,000 bond for a 3-year
term in the name of the appointed CTWA representative, Mr. Dirk Aaron. If the
representative draws a lesser term length on the CTWA board, the District will cancel the
bond after the representative’s term expires.




